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SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 24 NOVEMBER 2014

1 DECLARATION OF OPENING
The Mayor declared the meeting open at 1.01pm.

2 RECORD OF ATTENDANCE AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Cr K Williams Mayor

Cr A Beard Deputy Mayor & Councillor Division 8
Cr W Boglary Councillor Division 1
Cr C Ogilvie Councillor Division 2
Cr K Hardman Councillor Division 3
Cr L Hewlett Councillor Division 4
Cr M Edwards Councillor Division 5
Cr J Talty Councillor Division 6
Cr M Elliott Councillor Division 7
Cr P Gleeson Councillor Division 9
Cr P Bishop Councillor Division 10

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM:

Mr B Lyon Chief Executive Officer

Mr N Clarke General Manager Organisational Services

Mrs L Rusan General Manager Community & Customer Services
Mrs L Batz Chief Financial Officer

Mr G Soutar General Manager Infrastructure & Operations
MINUTES:

Mrs J Parfitt Corporate Meetings & Registers Team Leader

3 DECLARATION OF MATERIAL PERSONAL INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ON ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS

Nil
4 CLOSED SESSION

MOTION TO CLOSE THE MEETING AT 1.02PM

Moved by: Cr P Bishop
Seconded by: Cr M Edwards

That the meeting be closed to the public pursuant to Section 275(1) of the Local
Government Regulation 2012, to discuss the following item:
4.1.1 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSED REDLAND CITY PLAN 2015 FOR STATE
INTEREST REVIEW
The reason that is applicable in this instance is as follows:
(g) any action to be taken by the local government under the Planning Act,
including deciding applications made to it under that Act;

CARRIED 11/0
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SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 24 NOVEMBER 2014

MOTION TO REOPEN MEETING AT 1.08PM

Moved by: Cr J Talty
Seconded by: Cr M Edwards

That the meeting be again opened to the public.
CARRIED 11/0

41 COMMUNITY & CUSTOMER SERVICES

4.1.1 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSED REDLAND CITY PLAN 2015 FOR STATE
INTEREST REVIEW

Dataworks Filename: Redlands Planning Scheme 2015

Authorising Officer:

Louise Rusan
General Manager Community & Customer
Services

Responsible Officer: Kim Kerwin
Project Manager — Planning Scheme Review

Author: Larissa Godfrey
Senior Strategic Planner

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A confidential report from General Manager Community & Customer Services was
discussed in closed session pursuant to Section 275(1) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

Moved by: Cr J Talty
Seconded by: Cr P Gleeson

That Council resolves as follows:
1. To endorse the proposed City Plan 2015 (version 5) for state interest review;

2. To write to the Hon Jeff Seeney, Deputy Premier and Minister for State
Development, Infrastructure and Planning requesting a state interest review
of the proposed Redland City Plan 2015 and the Minister's agreement to
publicly consult on the proposed Redland City Plan 2015; and

3. That the proposed Redland City Plan 2015 remains confidential.
CARRIED 9/2

Crs Elliott and Bishop voted against the motion.
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SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 24 NOVEMBER 2014

5 BUSINESS
5.1 OFFICE OF CEO
5.1.1 REDLAND CITY COUNCIL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

Dataworks Filename: FM Statements 2013-14
Attachment: OAO Certified Statements for the Year Ended 30
June 2014

Authorising Officer:

Bill Lyon
Chief Executive Officer

Responsible Officer: Linnet Batz
Chief Financial Officer

Author: Deborah Corbett-Hall
Service Manager Corporate Finance

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present the final (Queensland Audit Office certified)
2013-14 Annual Financial Statements and accompanying notes to Council for noting
prior to adoption of the 2013-14 annual report. Additionally, the report briefly
highlights a new disclosure requirement for 2016-17 (and 2015-16 for comparability
purposes) in transactions between related parties.

BACKGROUND

The Corporate Financial Reporting Team produced interim statements for the period
ending 28 February 2014 and provided the statements to Queensland Audit Office for
interim review and feedback. Draft statements for the period ending 30 June 2014
were subsequently updated and audited.

The attached 2013-14 Annual Financial Statements are final and have been certified
by the Queensland Audit Office (QAQO) as at 23 October 2014 to present a true and
fair view, in accordance with the prescribed accounting standards (i.e. an unqualified
audit opinion). In addition to the certified statements, the QAO also audited the
Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement. This is the second year of the
requirement to include both a current and long-term financial sustainability statement.
Consistent with other councils, the QAO has included an ‘emphasis of matter’ in the
auditor’s report on the current year financial sustainability statement to highlight the
statement has been constructed for a particular (special) purpose and the fact it may
not be suitable for another purpose.

In addition to the two aforementioned Independent Auditor’'s Reports enclosed within
the attachment, the QAO also audited Council’s annual financial statement for the
Roads to Recovery Program. The report has historically been an implicit part of the
external audit although from 2012-13 the QAO has separately audited this special
purpose report. The 2013-14 Roads to Recovery Financial Statement was found to

Page 3



SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 24 NOVEMBER 2014

be based on, and in agreement with, proper and appropriate accounts and
records. Due to the fact the report was compiled for a special purpose, the QAO
included an ‘emphasis of matter’ to outline the fact the financial report may not be
suitable for another purpose.

ISSUES

2013-14 Financial Year
Please refer attached statements, there are no additional issues encompassed in this
report.

Future considerations around Related Party Disclosures

The Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) has confirmed the extension of
AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to not-for-profit public sector entities for
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016. This will become a formal
reporting requirement for the 2016-17 financial year for ‘Key Management Personnel’
although of note the information will also need to be collected for the 2015-16
financial statements and disclosures for comparability purposes.

Key Management Personnel at Redland City Council will include the Executive
Leadership Team and Councillors. This group will need to complete a form that will
facilitate the disclosure of any related party transactions. Related party transactions
are of interest to users of financial statements and community members and during
the 2015-16 year the Corporate Financial Reporting Team will provide further
definitions, advice and guidance to ensure our disclosure requirements are met for
2016-17 and include information for the 2015-16 financial year as per the
requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Section 176 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires a local government
to prepare the following for each financial year

e ageneral purpose financial statement;

e a current-year financial sustainability statement; and

e along-term financial sustainability statement.

All three requirements were met by the statutory timeframe.

Risk Management

Risk management is undertaken during the year with respect to the financials —
Council reviews its actual performance against budget on a monthly basis and
formally reviews its budget on a quarterly basis. Financial Services also liaises with
the Queensland Audit Office at interim and final audits with respect to risk reduction
and mitigation in addition to internal controls.

Financial

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report - all impacts to
Council’s financial performance in 2013-14 or financial position as at 30 June 2014
are included in the accompanying financial statements and supporting notes.
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People

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide the financial
statements for 2012-13.

Environmental

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide the financial
statements for 2013-14.

Social

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide the financial
statements for 2013-14.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans

This report has a relationship with the following items of the Corporate Plan:

8. Inclusive and ethical governance

Deep engagement, quality leadership at all levels, transparent and accountable
democratic processes and a spirit of partnership between the community and Council
will enrich residents’ participation in local decision making to achieve the community’s
Redlands 2030 vision and goals

8.7 Ensure Council resource allocation is sustainable and delivers on Council and
community priorities; and

8.8  Provide clear information to citizens about how rates, fees and charges are set
and how Council intends to finance the delivery of the Community Plan and
Corporate Plan.

CONSULTATION

Financial Services officers and other internal stakeholders have discussed the
finances, statement layout and appropriate accounting treatments with the
Queensland Audit Office both at the interim audit in March 2014 and the final audit in
September and October 2014.

The financial statements have been signed off by the Mayor and Chief Executive
Officer and subsequently taken to Audit Committee on 23 October 2014.
OPTIONS

1. Council resolves to note the audited Financial Statements for inclusion into the
2013-14 Annual Report.

2. Council requests further information.

OFFICER’'S RECOMMENDATION/
COUNCIL RESOLUTION
Moved by: Cr A Beard

Seconded by: Cr M Edwards

That Council resolves to note the audited Financial Statements for inclusion
into the 2013-14 Annual Report.

CARRIED 11/0
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2014

income

Recurrent revenue

Rates, levies and charges

Fees and charges

Rental income

Interest received

Sales revenue

Other income

Grants, subsidies and contributions

Total recurrent revenue

Capital revenue

Grants, subsidies and contributions
Non-cash contributions

Gain on reintegration of water operations
Increase in investment property

Total capital revenue

Total income

Expenses

Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits

Materials and services
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Total recurrent expenses
Capital expenses
Loss on disposal of non-current assets

Total capital expenses

Total expenses

Net resuft

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Total coMprehensive income/(loss) for the year

MNote

5(b)
5(b)
11

o W N o

25

Restated

2014 2013
$000 $000
197,243 190,295
11,008 12,602
808 438
3,868 4,250
3,659 2,666
1,049 2,112
6,887 8,638
224,612 221,001
22,078 14,128
5,669 6,547

- 200,436

27,747 221,161
252,359 442,162
(71,026) (78,391)
(86,282) (100,689)
(5.038) (5,814)
(47,965) (50,436)
(210,311) (235,330)
(3,373) (2,761)
(3,373) (2,761)
(213,684) (238,091)
38,675 204,071
14,347 129,661
333,732

53,022

The 'Net result’ and 'Total comprehensive income' for the 2012-13 year was extraordinarily high due to the one-off non-

cash gain on retuming water operations (refer Note 11).

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2014

Restated Restated
Note 2014 2013 1 July 2012
$000 $000 $000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 96,235 82,595 84,804
Trade and other receivables 13 26,139 20,930 15,502
Inventories 14 844 944 991
Non-current assets held-for-sale 13 354 467 29
Other current assets 16 1,114 1,235 994
Totai current assets 124,686 108,171 162,320
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables - - 9
Investment property 17 893 797 846
Property, plant and equipment 18 2,080,184 2,065,643 1,290,230
Intangible assets 19 2,360 963 . 353
Other financial assets 20 73 73 456,846
Total non-current assets 2,083,510 2,067,476 1,748,284
Total assets 2,208,198 2,173,647 1,850,604
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 15,248 10,980 22,010
Borrowings 22(a) 4375 4,124 3,996
Provisions 23(a) 19,926 20,574 17,411
Other current liabilities 24 5,759 6,362 6,572
Total current liabilities 45,308 42,040 49,989
Mon-current lizabilities
Borrowings 22(p) 54,608 58,978 58,593
Provisions 23(b) 19,793 37,164 40,289
Total non-current liabilities 74,401 96,142 98,882
Total liabilities 419,709 138,182 148,871
Net community assets 2,088,487 2,035,465 4,701,733
Community equity
Asset revaluation surplus 25 668,685 654,338 525,754
Retained surplus 1,347 121 1,321,370 1,132,967
Constrained cash reserves 26 72,681 59,757 43,012
Total community equity 2,088,487 2,035,465 1,704,733

Council has made a retrospective restatement as a consequence of a correction of an error and therefore, in accordance with
AASB 101 has presented a Statement of Financial Position as at the beginning of the comparative period, i.e. as at

1 July 2012. Refer to Note 32 for details.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
STATEMEMT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Mote
Balance as at 30 June 2013
Correction to opening balance

Restated balance as at 1 July 2013

Net resuit

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfers to and from reserves:
Transfers to reserves
Transfers from reserves

Total transfers to and from reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2014

Note
Balance as at 30 June 2012
Correction to opening balance 32

Restated balance as at 1 July 2012

Net result as stated in prior year
Corrections in year 32
Net result - restated
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Increasel/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus

Corrections in year 32
Other comprehensive income - restated

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfers to and from reserves:
Transfers to reserves
Transfers from reserves

Total transfers to and from reserves

Derecognition of asset revaluation surplus

Balance as at 30 June 2013

Asset Retained Constrained Total
Revaluation Surplusf Cash Reserves Community
Surplus Equity
$000 $000 3000 $000

25 26
654,338 1,321,370 59,757 2,035,465
654,338 1,321,370 §9,757 2,035,485
- 38,675 - 38,675
14,347 - - 14,347
14,347 38,675 - 53,022
- (47,703) 47,703 -
- 34,779 (34,779) -
- {12,924) 12,924 -
668,685 1,347,121 72,681 2,088,487
Asset Retained Constrained Total
Revaluation Surplus] Cash Reserves Community
Surplus Equity
$000 $000 $000 $000

25 26
526,588 1,145,983 43,012 1,715,583
(834) (13,016) - (13,850)
525,754 1,132,967 43,012 1,701,733
- 203,574 - 203,574
- 497 - 497
- 204,071 - 204,071
41,242 - - 41,242
88,419 - - 88,419
129,661 - - 129,661
128,661 204,071 - 333,732
- (34,831) 34,631 -
- 17,886 (17,886) -
- {16,745) 16,745 -
(1,077) 1,077 - -
654,338 1,321,370 58,757 2,035,465

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

MNon-capital grants and contributions
Borrowing costs

MNet cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payment for investment property

Payments for intangible assets

Net movement in loans to community groups
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions
Aliconnex Water debt allocation

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year

Restated

Mote 2014 2013
$000 $000

210,211 207,953

(173,641) (194,756)

36,570 13,197

4(d) 3,868 4,250
6,253 9,036

(3.839) (3.887)

31 42,852 22,596
(48,235) (36,931)

17 - (17)
19 (1,764) (982)
9 16

2,819 1,312

22.078 14,127

- (2,843)

{25,093) (25,318}

- 5715

22 (4,119) (5,202)
{4,118) 513

13,640 {2,209)

82,595 84,804

12 96,235 82,595

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

{a) Current
Quarry rehabilitation
Landfill rehabilitation

Workers compensation
Long service leave
Annual leave

{b) Non-Current
Quarry rehabilitation
Landfiil rehabilitation

Workers compensation
Long service leave

Movements in provisions were as follows:

Quarry rehabilitation

Opening balance at 1 July

Increase in provision - borrowing cost

Increase/(decrease) in provision due to change in discount rate and costs
Closing balance at 30 June

Restated

Note 2014 2013
$000 $000

- 91

6,491 5,747
278 627
7,181 8,283
5,976 5,826
18,926 20,574
- 728
17,578 33,926
478 693
1,737 1,816
19,783 37,164
820 1,001
(45) 45
(775) (226)

- 820

As Council is tendering for the long term operation of the German Church Quarry and doesn't anticipate a requirement for rehabilitation,

the provision has been reversed in 2013-14.

Landfili rehabilitation

Opening balance at 1 July

Increase in provision - borrowing cost{

Provision utilisation

Increase/(decrease) in provision due to change in discount rate and costs
Closing balance at 30 June

39,673 40,970
894 1,212
(4,431) (7,275)
(12,067) 4,766
24,069 39,673

This is the present value of the estimated cost of restoring closed landfill sites across the city is based on Council's ten year capital
program. The significant decrease in the closing balance is due to the revision of program costs in addition to the removal of external
debt to fund the remediation program. The program is now funded by a separate charge and internal short term loans from Council.

Workers compensation

Opening halance at 1 July
Adjustment for period
Closing balance.at 30 June

Long service leave
Opening balance at 1 July

Long service leave entitlemnent raised

Long service entittement used/extinguished
Long service entitement paid

Closing balance at 30 June

1,320 1,470
(564) (150)
756 1,320
10,099 9,130
(103) 2,517
(574) (543)
(504) (1,005)
8,918 10,099

Of the total current long service leave balance, $600,000 is expected to be settled within 12 months from balance date and $6,580,878 is
expected to be settled after more than 12 months after 30 June 2014. The non-current portion relates to employees who have not yet

reached the required years of service to be entitled to take long service leave. Prior year resuits have been adjusted following a

classification movement between current and non-current for employees who have reached seven years of service in accordance with

AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, refer Note 33.

Annual leave

Opening balance at 1 July

Annual leave entitlement raised

Annual leave entiflement used/extinguished
Annual leave entitement paid

Closing balance at 30 June

5,826 5,784
5,332 5,901
(4,702) (5,046)
(480) (813)
5,976 5,826

Of the total current annual leave balance, $4,225,207 is expected to be settled within 12 months from balance date and $1,751,233 is
expected fo be settled after more than 12 months. With the recent changes in AASB 118 Employee Benefits, annual leave is now
considered to be a long term benefit and is therefore subject to the same actuarial assumptions as long service leave. Annual leave

balances have been reclassified from trade and other payables to current provisions in the current and previous financial year.

Page 26 of 50

\_certified statements ./






REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Restated
Mote 2014 2013
$000 $000
Reserves held for future expenditura:
Special Projects Reserve 11,659 13,545
Utilities Reserve 13,018 2,497
Constrained Works Reserve 31,731 25,341
Separate Charge Reserve - Environment 8,440 14,027
Special Charge Reserve - Other 3 -
Special Charge Reserve - Canals 7,830 4,347
72,681 59,757
Movements in reserves are analysed as follows:
Special Projects Reserve
Opening balance at 1 July 13,545 11,798
Transfers from retained surplus for future expenditure 2,255 3,455
Transfers to retained surplus, funds expended during year (4,141} (1,708)
Closing balance at 30 June 11,659 13,545
Utilities Reserve
Opening balance at 1 July 2,497 2,103
Transfers from retained surplus for future expenditure 10,759 661
Transfers to retained surplus, funds expended during year (238) (267)
Closing balance at 30 June 13,018 2,497
Constrained Works Reserve
Opening balance at 1 July 25,341 16,481
Transfers from retained surplus for future expenditure 19,965 18,570
Transfers to retained surplius, funds expended during year (13,575) (9,710)
Closing balance at 30 June 31,731 25,341
Separate Charge Reserve - Environment
Opening balance at 1 July 14,027 9,563
Transfers from retained surplus for future expenditure 4,302 9,952
Transfers to retained surplus, funds expended during year (9,889) (5,488)
Closing balance at 30 June 8,440 14,027
Special Charge Reserve - Other
Opening balance at 1 July - -
Transfers from retained surplus for future expenditure 9738 114
Transfers to retained surpius, funds expended during year (975) (114)
Closing balance at 30 June 3 -
Special Charge Reserve - Canals
Opening balance at 1 July 4,347 3,067
Transfers from retained surpius for future expenditure 9,444 1,879
Transfers to retained surplus, funds expended during year (5,961) (599)
Closing balance at 30 June 7,830 4,347

certified statemenis }’

‘ cetifed sisements
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 June 2014

Redland City Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qld) (the scheme). The scheme is a Multi-Employer
Plan as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 119 Employee Benefits .

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local government superannuation
scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonweaith Superannuation Industry (Supervision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements, referred fo as:

« City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF} which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund
« Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regionatl DBF} which covers defined benefit fund members working for regional locat governments
« Accurmulation Benefits Fund (ABF)

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 119. Council has no liability to or interest in, the ABF other than the payment
of the statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009 .

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB 119. Councii is not able to account for the Regional DBF as a defined
benefit plan in accordance with AASB 119 because the scheme is unable to account to Council for its proportionate share of the defined
benefit obligation, plan assets and costs.

Any amount by which either fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits and contributions to the Regional DBF, and is not
an asset or fiability of Council. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements of any over or under funding of the scheme.

The audited general purpose financiai report of the scheme as at 30 June 2013 (the most recent available) which was not subject to any
audit qualification, indicates that the assets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested benefits.

The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2012. The actuary indicated that “the Regional DBF is
currently in a satisfactory but modest financial position and remains vulnerable to adverse short and medium term experience.”

Following the previous actuarial assessiment in 2003, councils were advised by the trustee of the scheme, following advice from the

scheme’s actuary, that additional contributions may be imposed in the future at a level necessary to protect the entitlements of Regional
DBF members. In the 2012 actuarial report the actuary has recommended na change to the employer confribution levels at this time.

Under the Local Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme has the power to levy additional contributions on councils which have
employees in the Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when the assets of the DBF

The next actuarial valuation will be conducted as at 1 July 2015.

2014 2013
$000 $000
The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Councit to the scheme in this
period for the benefit of employees was: 7,070 7,286
The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Council to the scheme in this
period for the benefit of counciflors was: 130 124
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REDLAND CiTY COUNCIL
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 Juns 2014

in the process of preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, adjustments relefing to prior periods were required to accurately refiect the balances of the comparative perinds. The emors
have been correcied by adjusting the opening balances at 1 July 2012 where necessary and the comparative amounts for the year ended 30 June 213

Property, plant and equipment:

Buildings
Recognition of assets identified during siocktake that had not previously been identified.

Total buildings

Plant and equipment

Derecognition of assets incorrectly captured which was identified during stockiake.
Recognition of assets identified during stocktake that had not previously been identified.
Total plant and equipment

Parks infrastructure

Derecognition of duplicate assets wentified during stocktake and assets not owned by RCC.
Recognition of assets identified during stocktake that had not previously been identified.
Total Parks infrastructure

Roads infrastructure

Derecognition of duplicate assets and private asset identified during stockiake.
Recegnition of assets identified during stecktake that had not previously been identified.
Redustion to the value of carparks to reflect correction for a calculation error.

Total Roads infrastructure

Stormmwater infrastruciure

Derecognition of assets incorrectly captured which was identified during stocktake.
Tolal Stormwater infrastruciure

WWater and wastewater infrastructuge

Derecognition of assets incarrectly captured which was identified during stockiake.
Recognition of assets identified during stocktake that had not previously been identified.
Total Water and wastewater infrastructure

Other infrastructure
Derecognition of duplicate assets dentified during stockiake.
Votal Other infrastructure

Intangible assets;

Computer Software
Derecognition of assets incorrectly captured which veas identified during stocktake.

Provisions:

Long service leave {Current)

Long service leave (Non-current)

Reclassification of benefils for emoicvees who have reached seven years of service.

Total correction of errors to retained surpius

Details of comections are provided belove

Impact to 1 July 2012 Opening Batance Impact in year 2012-2013 Cumulative
Cross value Accumulated Met WValua Gross valug Accumulated Met Value Mat Value)
Depraciation Depraciation
Q00 5600 3000 5000 000 SO0 5000
- - - 8 - B 8
- - - g - ) 8|
. 38 39 - 1 ] 40
- - - E - 13 3
. 39 39 13 1 14 53
{98) 39 {58) - 2 2 (57)
480 (188) 2 114 (33) 81 393
382 {129) 253 114 (31} 83 336
{516) 181 (335) - 18 18| {317
1.612 (578) 1,040 - 37 37 1,077
118.218] 4,345 113,873) 268 268 (13.805)
(17,116) 3,948 {13,168) - 323 323 {12,845)|
9 Bl - - - ol
{8 - i8] . . ] 18}
- - - [16) - 116) (16)
1 - 1 8z {1 81 82
1 - i 66 {1} 65 86
{200 88 {132) - 7 7 (125%
{200) 68 {132) - 7 7 (iz5))
|
{16,942) 3,926 {13,018) 201 293 500 {12.518),
- - - {3} - (3) 3
. ] - ) - o) @
- 8,758 - 942 7,700]|
- - (6,758) - - 1942) {7, 700)
| {16,942} 3,926 {13,016} 198 299| 497] {12,519)
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 June 2014

Property, plant and equipment:

Roads infrastructure
tmpact of opening balance revaluation.

Reduction 1o the value of carparks to reflect correction for a caiculation error.

Toial Roads infrastruciure
Stommwaler infrastructuie

impact of opening balance revaluation.
Total Stormwater infrastructure

Total correction of errors to asset revaluation sufpius

Total correction of errers

impact to 1 July 2012 Opening Balance lntpact M year 2012-2013 Cumulative ||

Gross valiie]  Accumuiatad Net Valua Gross value Accumuiated Not Vaiie) Not Value)
Depreciation Dapreciation

5022 5000 3500 5000 5000 5000 s00z)

- - - (120,528) 91,567 (29380 2938

[1,084) 220 {834) - - B &34
{1,054) 220 (834)  (120,928) 91.567 (29,361)]  (50,195)|

- 133,079 (15.259) 117,780 17,780}

- - - 133,079 (15.299) 117780 117,780

i I

{1,054) 220 {834) 12,151 76,268 88,418]) 87,588
{17,996} 4,146 {13,850 12,349 76,567 88,916 75,066
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 June 2014

A restated Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income has been included in the

financial statements as at 1 July 2012 and 30 June 2013 to reflect these adjustments:

1 July 2012

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Provisions

Total Current Liabilities
Provisions

Total Non-current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET COMMUNITY ASSETS

Retained surplus
Asset revaluation surplus
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY

30 June 2013

Property, plant and equipment
intangible assets

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Provisions

Total Current Liabilities
Provisions

Total Non-current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET COMMUNITY ASSETS
Retained surplus

Asset revaluation surpius
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY

Previously Adjustment Restated
stated
3000 $000 $000
1,304,080 (13,850) 1,290,230
353 - 353
1,762,134 {13,850) 1,748,284
1,864,454 {13,850) 1,850,604
10,653 6,758 17,411
43,23 6,758 49,982
47,047 (6.758) 40,289
105,640 {6,758) 98,882
148,871 - 148,871
1,715,583 {13,850) 1,701,733
1,145,983 (13,016) 1,132,967
526,588 (834) 525,754
1,715,583 {13,850) 1,701,733
1,990,574 75,069 2,065,643
966 (3) 963
1,992,410 75,066 2,067,476
2,098,580 75,068 2,173,646
12,874 7,700 20,574
34,340 7,700 42,040
44,864 (7,700) 37,164
103,842 {7,700) 96,142
138,182 - 138,182
1,960,398 75,066 2,035,464
1,333,889 (12,519) 1,321,370
566,753 87,585 654,338
1,960,398 75,066 2,035,464

The depreciation charge for the period ended 30 June 2014 was calculated after adjustments were made and
therefore did not need correction. The impact to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the prior year is as

follows:

30 June 2013

Materials and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Total recurrent expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES

NET RESULT

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Other comprehensive incomef{loss)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Previously Adjustment Restated
stated
$000 $000 $000
(100,887) 198 (1090,689)
(50,735) 299 (50,436)
(235,827) 497 (235,330}
(238,588) 497 {238,081)
203,574 497 204,071
41,242 88,419 129,661
41,242 88,419 129,661
244,816 88,916 333,732
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Redland City Council is exposed to various financial risks including credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Overall Council manages
financial risk with the aim of minimising potential adverse impacts on the performance of Council.

Exposure to financial risks is managed in accordance with Council approved policies on financial risk management. These policies focus on
managing the volatility of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of Council. Council
minimises its exposure to financial risk, described below.

investments in financial assets are only made where those assets are with a bank or other financial institution in Australia. Courncil does not
invest in derivatives or other high risk investments.

When Council borrows, it borrows from the Queensland Treasury Corporation. Borrowing by Council is constrained by the provisions of the
Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982 .

Council measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows:

Risk exposure Measurement method
Credit risk Ageing analysis
Liguidity risk Maturity analysis
Interest rate risk Sensifivity analysis

Council's objectives, policies and processes for managing risk and the methods used to measure the risk have not changed since 2009.
Council does not hold funds in foreign currency and so does not have exposure to currency risk.

(a) Credit risk exposure

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where Council may incur financial loss as a result of anather party to a financial instrument failing
to discharge their obligations.

In the case of rates receivables, Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts. in effect this power protects
Council against credit risk in the case of these debts.

in other cases, Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit protection procedures
to minimise the risk.

Council is exposed to credit risk through its investments with the Queensiand Treasury Corporation (QTC). Funds are held in a managed
portfolio that invests in a wide range of high rating counterparties. QTC's iong-term credit rating of AA+ is in line with the State Government's
credit rating of AA. Funds deposited with QTC present relatively low risk exposure and are capital guaranteed.

The total credit risk exposure on financial assets is generally the carrying amount, net of allowance for impairment which is represented in the
fair values table below (refer Note 34 (b)).

Council has no major concentration of credit risk to any single debtor ar group of debtors however, due to the nature of Council's operations
there is a geographical concentration of risk in the Council's area.

No assets have been pledged as collateral for liabilities or contingent liabilities.

Past due or impaired:
No financial assets have been renegotiated to prevent them from being past due or impaired and are stated at their carrying value. The
following table represents an analysis of the ageing of Council's financial assets that are either fully performing, past due or impaired.

Ageing Analysis Fully‘ Past due but not impaired impaired Total
performing
31-60 days{ 61-90 days >90 days

3000 $000 $000 3000 $000 $000
2014
Trade and other receivables 18,290 162 3,189 4571 (73) 26,139
2043
Trade and other receivables 13,714 233 3,238 3,836 @1 20,930

(b) Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where Council may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business
and borrowings from the QTC for capital works.

Council reviews liquidity risk indicators regularly and maintains sufficient cash on demand to meet operating and financing obligations for
between 90 and 120 days, excluding the impact of extreme circumstances that cannot be reasonably predicted, such as natural disasters.
Councit can recall funds invested with QTC within a working day to cover unexpected volatility in cash flows.

~ QAO
. certified statements
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Redland City Council measures the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis:
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure assets including roads, stormwater, water and wastewater, parks, other infrastructure and waste
investment property

In accordance with AASB 13, fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:
Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (Level 2)
Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (Level 3)

All fair value measurements are recurrent and categorised as either Level 2 or Level 3. Council does not hold any assets valued using Level 1
inputs. Where all significant inputs used to value the asset are observable, the asset is valued at Level 2. However, if one or more of the
_significant inputs are unobservable, the asset is valued as Level 3.

Council's valuation policy and procedures are set by the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Leadership Team and reviewed every three
years. Annual reviews of depreciation, impairment, asset lives and asset balances are conducted by the Executive Management Team. Council's
current policy for the recurrent valuation of property, plant and equipment and investment property is documented in Note 2.i and Note 2.j Non-
recurring valuations are completed as necessary on reclassification. The valuation methodology maximises observable inputs.

Recognised fair value measurements
The following table represents the assets measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2014. Comparison information has not been provided
as allowed by the transitional provisions of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Level 2 Level 3

Description (Significant other (Significant,

Gross value] Written down value observable inputs) unobservable inputs)

$000 $000 $000 $000

Land 257,538 257,538 12,729 244,809
Buildings 116,330 62,945 - 62,945
Roads 765,996 567,113 - 567,113
Stormwater drainage 520,638 397,336 - 397,336
Water and wastewater 1,006,363 634,996 - 634,996
Parks 67,518 35,854 - 35,854
Other infrastructure 101,698 67,293 - 67,293
Waste 14,258 9,481 - 9,481
Investment property 893 893 - 893
2,851,232 2,033,448 12,729 2,020,720

There were no transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 during the year. Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value
hierarchy levels (if any) at the end of the reporting period.

Disciosed fair values

Council borrowings are measured at amoriised cost with interest recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when incurred. The fair
value of borrowings is disclosed in Note 22 and is provided by Queensiand Treasury Corporation and represents the contractual undiscounted
cash flows at balance date.

The carrying amounts of frade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.
WYaluation techniques used to derive fair values

The specific valuation techniques used to value Council's assets are documented below. Fair value represents the highest and best use of the
assets having regard to the optimal financial, physical and {egal use of the asset.

The sensitivity of the fair value to the Level 3 inputs is provided in a table following each class. There is a clear inter-refationship hetween the
asset condition, the assumed level of consumed service potential and remaining life for ail assets valued at depreciated replacement cost. In these
cases, the lower the asset condition; the higher the level of consumed service potential; and the lower the remaining life. No other relationships
between the Level 3 inputs are noted.

Land

All council freehold land was comprehensively valued as at 30 June 2011 by qualified independant external valuers, AssetVal Pty Ltd (registered
valuers - since 1839). The valuation was based on publicly availabie data on sales of similar land in nearby localities. Subsequently, an
independant desktop valuation was performed by AssetVal Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2012 and 2014, as the movement in [and values across the city
indicated a material adjustment.

Land re-transferred to Council from Aliconnex Water was independantly valued by qualified external valuers, AssetVal Pty Ltd (registered valuers -
since 1839), for determination of the fair value as at 1 July 2012.
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REDLAME CHPY COUNCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 30 June 2014

The following table represents the changes in the value of assets measured using significant unobservable inputs [Level 3) for recurring fair value measurements. Thare were no changes to the valuation techniques during

the year.

Land Buiidings Roads Stormwater Water and Parks QOther Waste Total
fsset values drainage wastewater infrastructure

] QaC 2000 agad 000 ] 300 S00¢ 00 3000

Closing balance from previous year 243,098 65,740 §38,042 409,448 644,988 45,138 68,452 9,774 2,024,876
Adjustroents to opening value - - 19,243 {10,873} - {8,327 {43) R -
Opening balance 1 July 2013 243,098 85,740 §57,288 398,575 644,986 36,811 88,408 8,774 2,024,678
Additions at cost 1,712 &10 18,944 5 A4 0365 2,226 4475 234 34,983
Contributed assets at vajuation - - 464 1,737 2,862 387 - - 5,450
Land acquired in lieu of rates 61 - 61
Reclassitications : - {160] 3,339 - 4 {) £3,333) - {96)

Included in Profit and Loss

Depreciation - (3,300 (11,688) {5,387} 116,512 {3,229) {1,991) (497) (42,604)

7
Disposals {1,677) {4) {L,231) {336 £408) {336) (267) . (4,259)

ingiuded in Comprehensive Income

Net increase (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 14,347 - - - - - - - 14,347

Closing balance at 30 June 2014 267,538 62,346 587,113 397.33¢ 634,998 35,864 67.293 9,481 2,032,657
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Code of Competitive Conduct
Business activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied

A government business activity is one which competes with private businesses and exceeds thresholds set by Depariment of Local Government,
Community Recovery & Resilience. [n order to remove any advantages or disadvantages, the competitive neutrality principle must be applied.

The Code of Competitive Conduct seeks to ensure government businesses compete on the same basis as it competitors by:
(a)  the application of the competitive neutrality principle, by removing or taking into account any competitive advantage or
disadvantage when deciding charges for goods or services;
applying full cost pricing when deciding charges for goods or services, or charging for commercial reasons;
treating the net cost of performing community service obligations as revenue, except for particular roads activities;
as part of a local government's financial reporting:
(i) that the local government's budget contains an estimated activity statement for each business activity; and
(i) that the local government's annuat financiat statement contains an activity statement for each business activity.

o~ e~ =~
[ A o T =

The activity statement for each business activity must state:
(a)  the revenue from the business activity; and
(b)  the expenses for the business activity; and
(c)  the surplus or deficit for the financial year; and
(d)  if community service obligations were carried on:
(i) a description of the community service obiigations; and
(ii) the cost of carrying out the community service abligations, minus the revenue from the community service obligations.

[

Counclil resclved to apply the Code of Competitive Conduct to the following business activities during 2013-14.

Water and wastewater Cemeteries
Waste Management Building Ceriification
Redland Art Gallery Rediand Performing Arts Centre (RPAC)

Financial performance of activities subject to code of competitive conduct:

Significant Business Activities Water and Waste
wastewater] Management
2014 2014
$000 $000

Revenue for services provided to Council 1,961 529
Revenue for services provided to external clients 94 351 19,650
Community service obligations 445 1,723
96,757 21,902

Less: Expenditure 86,536 20,871
Operating surplus 10,221 1,031

Financial perfoermance of activities subject to code of competitive conduct:
. . e Redland Art Buildin

Prescribed Business Activities Galleryy Cemeteries Cerﬁﬁcatio?\ RPAC
2014 2014 2014 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000

Revenue for services provided to Council - - 8 46
Revenue for services provided to external clients 65 277 267 490
Community service obligations 142 - 24 134
Contribution from general fund 442 19 239 1,559
649 296 538 2,229

Less: Expenditure 649 296 538 2,229
Operating surplus/(deficit) - - - -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Mayor of Redland City Council

Report on the Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Redland City Council, which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council’'s responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures seiected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant fo the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control,
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

" | believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.












INDEPENDENT AUD

ITOR’S REPORT
To the Mayor of Redland City Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

I have audited the accompanying current-yvear financial sustainability statement, which is a
special purpose financial report of Redland City Council for the year ended 30 June 2014,
comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief
Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Governmeni Regulation 2012.
The Council’s responsibiiity also includes such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of
Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require compliance with relevant ethicai requirements relating to audit
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the statement.

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately
calculated based on the Council's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor
on the Council’s future sustainability.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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5.1.2 ANNUAL COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT 2013-14
Dataworks Filename: FM Annual Community Financial Report

Attachment: Community Financial Report 2013-14

Authorising Officer:

Bill Lyon
Chief Executive Officer

Responsible Officer: Linnet Batz
Chief Financial Officer

Author: Deborah Corbett-Hall
Service Manager Corporate Finance

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present the 2013-14 Community Financial Report to
Council which will then form part of the 2013-14 Redland City Council Annual Report.

BACKGROUND

The annual Community Financial Report is a plain language document that contains
a summary and analysis of Council’s financial performance and position for 2013-14.
It is consistent with the general purpose financial statements and discloses how
Council has performed against the adopted key financial stability indicators and
financial sustainability measures.

It uses non-technical language and pictorial aids such as graphs and tables to make
it easy-to-follow by the community and other stakeholders.

The Corporate Financial Reporting Team produced the attached report on
completion of the 2013-14 annual financial statements and accompanying notes.

ISSUES

There are no issues contained in the Community Financial Report that are not
already covered in the 2013-14 Annual Report or Financial Statements. The
attachment is purely a summary — please refer to the Annual Report for full
information.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Section 179 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires a local government
to prepare a Community Financial Report for each financial year.

The report then forms part of Council’'s Annual Report, alongside the Queensland
Audit Office certified financial statements, disclosures and financial sustainability
statements.
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Risk Management

Risk management was undertaken during the year with respect to the financials —
Council reviewed its actual performance against budget on a monthly basis and
formally reviewed its budget on a quarterly basis.

Financial Services also liaised with the Queensland Audit Office at interim and final
audits with respect to risk reduction and mitigation.

Financial

There are no direct financial impacts to Council resulting from this report; however it
provides a plain language indication of financial performance and position for the
2013-14 financial year.

People

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide explanations
and analysis of Council’s financial performance and position for 2013-14.

Environmental

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide explanations
and analysis of Council’s financial performance and position for 2013-14.

Social

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide explanations
and analysis of Council’s financial performance and position for 2013-14.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans
This report has a relationship with the following items of the Corporate Plan:

8. Inclusive and ethical governance

Deep engagement, quality leadership at all levels, transparent and accountable
democratic processes and a spirit of partnership between the community and Council
will enrich residents’ participation in local decision making to achieve the community’s
Redlands 2030 vision and goals

8.7 Ensure Council resource allocation is sustainable and delivers on Council and
community priorities; and

8.8  Provide clear information to citizens about how rates, fees and charges are
set and how Council intends to finance the delivery of the Community Plan
and Corporate Plan.

CONSULTATION

Consultation has taken place between the Chief Financial Officer, Service Manager
Corporate Finance and the Corporate Financial Reporting Team.

The attachment is a plain language guide based on the information contained in the
financial statements which have been signed off by the Mayor and Chief Executive
Officer and subsequently taken to Audit Committee on 23 October 2014.

OPTIONS
1. That Council resolves to note the Community Financial Report for 2013-14.

2. That Council amends the Community Financial Report for 2013-14 prior to
inclusion in the 2013-14 Annual Report.
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OFFICER’'S RECOMMENDATION/
COUNCIL RESOLUTION
Moved by: Cr P Bishop

Seconded by: Cr J Talty
That Council resolves to note the Community Financial Report for 2013-14.

CARRIED 11/0
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Community Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Purpose

The Community Financial Report is produced each year as part of Council’s annual report to provide members of the
community, customers, business partners and employees with a better understanding of our financial performance
and position over the last financial year. The report uses non-technical language and pictorial aids such as graphs and
tables to give all interested readers and stakeholders an easy-to-follow summary of Councils Financial Statements
which have been prepared in accordance with Section 179 of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

Summary of key financial stability and sustainability indicators

Strategically, Council aims to operate within a set of conservative guidelines to ensure it is financially viable in the
short term, whilst sustainable in the medium and long term. As part of its financial strategy, Council has adopted
seven key financial stability indicators to guide our financial health. In addition to these financial stability indicators, we
have five sustainability indicators to help monitor the long term sustainability of Council. Financial sustainability for
Councils is now the cornerstone of the Local Government Act 2009 and a core responsibility of individual Councils
across Queensland.

Throughout the financial year, these indicators are calculated and reported at monthly Council meetings, as part of a
full suite of financial reports. This means that should there be any deviation outside these parameters, the Executive
Leadership and Council will be fully informed and can take timely, corrective action as required.

The table below summarises how Council performed against set targets for the seven key financial stability indicators
established in our financial strategy. In summary, Council achieved or exceeded six of the seven financial stability
targets, performing well in our ability to generate cash from day-to-day operations, meeting all financial commitments
in the financial year and keeping debt to conservative and manageable levels. This was achieved while maintaining
community services and making ongoing investment in community infrastructure.

Actual

Financial Stability Indicators

Target

Performance

Level Of Dependence On General Rate Revenue < 37.5% 33.74% v
Ability To Pay Our Bills - Current Ratio 1.1t0 4.1 2.75 v
Ability To Repay Our Debt - Debt Servicing Ratio < 10% 3.54% v
Cash Balance > $40M $96.24M v
Cash Balance - Cash Capacity In Months 3 to 4 months 6.51 v
Longer Term Financial Stability - Debt To Assets Ratio < 10% 2.67% v
Operating Performance > 20% 19.45% X

The measures of sustainability are shown in the table below and demonstrate Council’s ability to maintain its financial
capital and infrastructure capital over the long term. Overall, the results indicate a very sound outlook, with Council
meeting four of the five targets. The operating surplus ratio, the net financial liabilities ratio and the asset sustainability
ratios have targets to be achieved on average over the long term (a period of at least 10 years) and are not
necessarily expected to be met on a monthly or annual basis. Achieving the target for the asset sustainability ratio
continues to be challenging, however Council have committed to a long term financial strategy that works towards
meeting this goal. Additionally, Council has adopted a Capital Works Prioritisation Policy during 2014 to enable the

prioritisation of ‘renewals’ of existing assets ahead of ‘upgrade’ and/or ‘new’ works.

Actual
Measures of Sustainability Target Performance
Operating Surplus Ratio 0% to 10% 6.37% v
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio* < 60% -2.22% v
Interest Coverage Ratio** 0% to 5% -0.01% v
Asset Sustainability Ratio > 90% 45.65% X
Asset Consumption Ratio 40% to 80% 68.48% v

*This is calculated using net financial liabilities, i.e. total liabilities minus current assets. The negative number indicates that
Council’s current assets exceed the total liabilities. Therefore, Council has outperformed this target.
** This is calculated using net interest expense, i.e. interest expense minus interest revenue. The negative number indicates that
Council has earned more interest than it has spent on borrowings. Therefore, Council has outperformed this target.



About Council’s financial statements

The audited financial statements of Council set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows as well
as changes in community equity for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

The financial statements have been endorsed by the Mayor and the CEO as “presenting fairly” Council’s financial
result for the year and these financial statements have been adopted by Council, demonstrating the responsibility and
ownership thereof by management and elected representatives.

Council’s financial statements are required to be audited by the Queensland Audit Office (QAO). The audit of
Queensland Councils are contracted to audit firms which specialise in local government. The 2013-14 Annual
Financial Statements are final and have been certified by the QAO as at 23 October 2014 to present a true and fair
view, in accordance with the prescribed accounting standards (i.e. an unqualified audit opinion).

Overview of financial results

Council’s net result was a $38.68M surplus for the year ended 30 June 2014. The net result is calculated as total
income minus total expenditure. The net result includes revenue set aside for capital purposes such as the value of
physical assets handed to Council, developer cash contributions, and other government funding of a capital nature, as
well as expenses of a capital nature e.g. losses on disposal of non-current assets. The removal of capital items from
the net result shows Council’s Net Operating Result, which is more indicative of Council’s day-to-day operations.

Below are Council’s key financial performance highlights:

2013-14 2013-14 Restated
Revised Budget Actual 2012-13 Actual

Information at a glance $ Millions $ Millions $ Millions
Operating Income 227.77 224.61 221.00
Operating Expenditure (230.03) (210.31) (235.33)
Net Operating Result/(Deficit) (2.26) 14.30 (14.33)
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 18.17 27.75 20.68
Gain on Reintegration of Water Operations - - 200.49
Other Capital Income/(Expenditure) 1.92 (3.37) (2.76)
Net Result 17.83 38.68 204.08

Council’s finances demonstrated ‘business as usual’ during 2013-14. The swing from a $14.33M operating deficit
(total operating expenses exceeding operating income) in 2012-13 to $14.30M surplus (total operating revenue
exceeding total operating expenses) in 2013-14 is primarily due to annual increases in rates and charges, higher
residential and commercial water consumption, reduction in the closed landfill provision (which reduces the operating
expenditure), reduced depreciation expenditure and lower employee costs.

Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions include developer cash contributions received during the year which
increased as a result of growth in development activity during the year.

The 2012-13 net result includes a $200.49M capital gain on the re-integration of water operations on 1 July 2012. On
1 July 2012, Allconnex Water ceased operations and the water operations were returned to Redland Water. The
reversal of the investment in Allconnex and the re-introduction of the water assets in Council books gave rise to a non-
cash gain of $200.49M because the returning water assets were valued at fair value rather than a regulated valuation
used when they were part of Allconnex. Although the transaction was non-cash, it significantly increased community
equity and was recognised as income in the 2012-13 financial statements.

Income vs Expenses - 5 Year Trend

(CPI ajdusted)
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200,000 B Operating Revenue
100,000 - B Operating Expenses

Operating Result
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Following is a series of tables and graphs that illustrate Council’s key financial results. Where comparisons are made
between 2013-14 and prior years, the prior year figures have been increased to take account of price changes (CPI -
Consumer Price Index) to ensure comparisons are meaningful.

What were our major sources of income?
(Statement of Comprehensive Income)

The graph below illustrates the breakdown of income between the major sources of income for 2013-14.

Sources of Income 2013-14

$8.83M Other (3.5%)

$75.77M General Rates
net of discount (30.0%)

$91.87M Water and
Wastewater Charges
(36.4%)

.__$11.01M Fees &
Charges (4.4%)

$18.10M Waste
Disposal Charges
(7.2%)

\$5.67M Developer non-

cash contributions
(2.2%)

$3.87M Interest /
received (1.5%)

$22.08M Capital Grants /
& Subsidies (8.8%)

$6.89M Operating )
Grants & Contributions - $8-27M Environmental

(2.7%) Levy (3.3%)

Total income received this year (operating income plus capital grants, subsidies and contributions) was $252.36M.
Removing the gain on re-integration of water operations, this result was $3.93M (CPI adjusted), or 1.58% greater than
the 2012-13 financial year.

The major sources of income are general rates, water and wastewater charges as well as waste disposal fees.
Income from these sources contributed 73.6% towards Council’s total income for the year. Also, the total grants,
subsidies and cash contributions received during the year were $28.97M, comprising operating ($6.89M) and capital
($22.08M) elements. This is an increase of $6.20M from last year primarily due to increased cash contributions
received from developers.

Council earned $3.87M, or 1.53% of total income from interest on investments and overdue rates during the financial
year and the total interest earned outweighed the interest expense for the year. This result reflects Council’s sound
financial management of cash holdings.



What expenses did Council have to meet?
(Statement of Comprehensive Income)

The graph below illustrates the breakdown of expenses between the major components of expenditure for 2013-14.

Expenses 2013-14

$3.37M Loss on
Disposal of Non-

$47.97M Current Assets
Depreciation (1.6%)
and

Amortisation
(22.4%)
$71.03M
Employee
Benefits (33.2%)

$5.04M Finance
Costs (2.4%)

$86.28M
Materials and

Services

(40.4%)

Council’'s expenses for the 2013-14 financial year totalled $213.68M, which is a decrease of 12.69% compared to the
previous year's expenses of $244.74M (CPI adjusted).

Materials and services expenditure includes the costs of all consultancies, contractors and other goods and materials
consumed in delivering projects and services to the community. This includes roads, parks, canals, footpaths,
bikeways, marine infrastructure, car parks, libraries, waste collection, water treatment, swimming pools, showgrounds,
sports fields, community halls and town planning.

As part of the 10 year capital program, Council estimates the cost of restoring landfill sites across the City. These
program costs were revised during 2013-14 and, together with a change in the funding structure for this program,
resulted in a significant decrease in the landfill rehabilitation provision. This change decreased our materials and
services expenditure for the current year.

Employee costs include wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave, superannuation and allowances paid to
all full-time, part-time and casual staff. Overall, staff wages and salaries were lower this year as well as costs
associated with annual leave and long service leave.

Depreciation expenses reflect the usage of Council’s assets and refer to the estimated reduction in the value of our
assets due to wear and tear or becoming technically out of date. This includes roads and stormwater drainage
infrastructure, buildings, marine infrastructure and plant and equipment.

What is the value of the community’s assets in our care?
(Statement of Financial Position)

Restated
2013-14 2012-13
Value of Community Assets $ Millions $ Millions
Total Assets 2,208.20 2,173.65 1.59%
Total Liabilities 119.71 138.18 -13.37%
Net Community Assets (Community Equity) 2,088.49 2,035.47 2.60%

See Financial Statements 'Statement of Financial Position' for more information



Assets

The total value of all assets controlled by Council was $2.21B at 30 June 2014. This figure is broken down between
current assets of $124.69M (5.6%) and non-current assets of $2.08B (94.4%).

Assets In Council's Care

$96.24M Cash and cash

$4.52M Other Non-Current equivalents (4.4%)

Assets (0.2%)

$27.25M Debtors & Other
Current Assets (1.2%)

$635.00M Water &
Wastewaster (28.7%)

$567.11M Roads (25.7%)

$25.92M Work in progress
(1.2%)

$9.48M Waste (0.4%)

$21.71M Plant and
equipment (1.0%)

$35.85M Parks (1.6%)

$62.95M Buildings (2.9%)

$67.29M Other
infrastructure (3.0%)

\_$397.34M Stormwater
drainage (18.0%)
$257.54M Land (11.7%)

Current assets are those that are readily available to meet expenses and mainly include cash and amounts owed from
customers. Cash assets were $96.24M and receivables from customers were $26.14M at the end of the 2013-14
financial year. Council’s cash balance improved since 2012-13 and moved from $82.60M to $96.24M. Additional
capital grants, subsidies and cash contributions received during the year and some delays in capital and operational
projects contributed to the higher cash balance. Any excess funds Council don't anticipate to use within 3 - 4 months
are moved to an interest earning cash management fund.

Council’s property, plant and equipment assets of $2.08B include freehold land, buildings, roads, stormwater
drainage, water, wastewater, waste, parks infrastructure and plant and equipment. Land, road assets and stormwater
drainage assets were independently valued during the 2013-14 year. The road and stormwater drainage assets were
valued as at 1 July 2013 and revaluation adjustments treated as corrections to prior year reported balances.

During the 2013-14 financial year Council’s capital expenditure amounted to $49.55M on work-in-progress and
$41.95M on other asset categories (which includes transfers from work-in-progress). Major capital projects during the
2013-14 year included road reseals and resurfacing, road reconstruction, wastewater pump stations and wastewater
treatment, Southern Moreton Bay Islands, as well as computer projects works programs.



The graph below demonstrates Council’s total asset values over the last five years.

Total Assets 5 Year Trend
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)

Liabilities

Liabilities are amounts owed by council at 30 June 2014 and totalled $119.71M.

Council's Liabilities

$5.76M Other
Liabilities (4.8%)

$24.07M Landfill
Rehabilitation
Provision (20.1%)

$0.76M Workers Bi?%\?v?nl\gs
Compensation (49.3%)

Provision (0.6%)

$114.89M

Employee

Entitlements
(12.4%)

$15.25M Trade
Creditors (12.8%)

The largest single debt Council owed at 30 June 2014 was to Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC). QTC is the
state government-owned lending agency from which most local government and state authorities borrow to finance
their large-scale infrastructure projects. At the end of the financial year, Council owed QTC a total of $58.98M, with
$4.38M payable in the next 12 months and $54.61M due in subsequent years. During the year Council made a
decision to utilise existing cash balances as a priority over borrowings. As a result there were no drawdowns from
loans during the current financial year.

As part of the 10 year capital program, Council estimates the cost of restoring landfill sites across the City. These
program costs were revised during 2013-14 and, together with a change in the funding structure for this program,
resulted in a significant decrease in the landfill rehabilitation provision.



The following graph demonstrates Council’s total liabilities over the past five years.

Total Liabilities 5 Year Trend
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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The graph below illustrates the level of Council’s loan borrowings with QTC over the past five years.

5 Year Analysis of Council's QTC Debt
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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The graph below outlines the ratio of our total loans compared to total assets over the past five years. At the end of
the 2013-14 financial year, total debt as a percentage of total assets was only 2.67%. This puts into perspective the
relatively low level of borrowings compared to total assets.

Debtto Assets Ratio
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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The following graph shows how much of Council’s revenue is consumed in the repayment of interest and principal to
QTC. In 2013-14, only 3.54% of operating revenue was spent repaying interest and principal on our borrowings. This
is relatively low and sitting very comfortably within our Financial Stability Ratio targets.

Ability to Meet Debt from Operating Revenue

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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What were the major sources of cash in and cash out?
(Statement of Cash Flows)

The table below compares the main sources of cash receipts and cash paid during the financial years ended 30 June
2013 and 30 June 2014.

Restated

2013-14 2012-13 Change
Main Sources of Cash In and Out $ Millions | $ Millions*
Net Cash Received from Operations (excluding interest and borrowing costs) 42.82 22.85 87.37%
Purchase and Construction of Assets (50.00) (38.99) 28.24%
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 22.08 14.52 52.02%
New Loans Taken Out - 5.87 -100.00%
Repayment of Debt (4.12) (5.35) -22.97%

See Financial Statements 'Statement of Cash Flows' for more information
* CPI adjustment included to ensure comparability

The cash flow statement is summarised into three activities:

e Operating activities - our normal day-to-day functions. These include receipts of rates, fees and charges and
operating grants offset by payments for employee costs, materials and services and interest costs.

e Investing activities - include payments for the purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment and
proceeds from the sale of surplus assets.

e Financing activities - are repayments of principal on our loans, as well as the inflows from new loans drawn
down in the year.

We started the 2013-14 financial year with $82.60M cash in the bank and ended the year with $96.24M exceeding the
target for cash capacity in months.



The following graph shows our total cash holdings for the past five years. The increase of Council’s cash balance
reflects the higher capital grants, subsidies and contributions, as well as the lower payments to suppliers and
employees during the 2013-14 financial year.

5 Year Analysis of CashBalances
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)

To maintain Council’s strong financial position on behalf of the community, we must maintain and manage sufficient
cash from our day-to-day operations to fund purchases of property, plant and equipment, repay interest and principal
payments on loans and leave enough in reserves for future requirements.

An essential requirement for any business, including Council, is its ability to pay its bills as and when they fall due. A
good benchmark for measuring this capacity is called the current ratio, which is the ratio of current assets to current
liabilities.

The following diagram illustrates that the ratio has been greater than 2.00 for the past five years, remaining at a

healthy level of 2.75 in 2013-14.
Ability to Pay Our Bills - Current Ratio
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)

Summary

Council delivered a large program of operational and capital works during the 2013-14 financial year and achieved this
delivery while still exceeding six of the seven key financial stability indicators.

On an annual basis, Council reviews its long term financial strategy and key financial policies to ensure it continues to
travel in the right financial direction and in 2013-14 Council continued to meet all financial commitments and keep debt
at low and very manageable levels. Council balances its long term strategies and outlook with in-year priorities and
monitors its financial position and performance on a monthly basis. It also formally revises its budget each quarter,
where required. The budget review process is under review to achieve efficiencies and ensure timely changes can be
made to the budget in achieving Council’s capital and operational projects. These reviews are complimented by
regular credit reviews conducted by the Queensland Treasury Corporation to ensure the short, medium and long term
financial sustainability of your Council.

Redland City Council is once again in a strong financial position to deliver the planned program of projects and
services for the next financial year and beyond.



Definition of Ratios

Level of Dependence on General Rate Revenue: General Rates - Pensioner Remissions

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of Developed Land

Current Ratio: Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Debt Servicing Ratio: Interest Expense + Loan Repayments

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of Developed Land

Cash Balance - $M: Cash Held at Period End

Cash Capacity in Months: Cash Held at Period End

[[Cash Operating Costs + Interest Expense]/12]

Debt to Asset Ratio: Current and Non-current loans

Total Assets

Operating Performance: Net Cash from Operations + Interest Revenue and Expense

Cash Operating Revenue + Interest Revenue

Operating Surplus Ratio: Net Operating Surplus

Total Operating Revenue

Net Financial Liabilities: Total Liabilities - Current Assets

Total Operating Revenue

Interest Cover Ratio: Net Interest Expense on Debt Senice

Total Operating Revenue

Asset Sustainability Ratio: Capital Expenditure on Replacement of Assets (Renewals)

Depreciation Expenditure

Asset Consumption Ratio: Written Down Value of Infrastructure Assets

Gross Current Replacement Cost of Infrastructure Assets
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5.2 ORGANISATIONAL SERVICES
5.2.1 ADOPTION OF ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

Dataworks Filename: GOV Annual Report —2013-14
Attachment: 2013-14 Annual Report
Authorising/Responsible Officer: MW—*

Nick Clarke

General Manager Organisational Services
Author: Jo Jones

Service Manager Corporate Planning &

Performance
PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to recommend to the General Meeting that the Annual
Report 2013-14 be adopted. The annual report provides an overview of the financial
year, including financial statements, performance data and other statutory
information. The final draft of the Annual Report 2013-14 will be distributed to
Councillors separately. After adoption, Council must publish its annual report on its
website within two weeks.

BACKGROUND

Each year, Council adopts an annual report, as required by the Local Government
Act 2009. The annual report must contain information on Council’s financial position,
an assessment of its performance in implementing its corporate and operational
plans as well as a number of other issues of public interest which are specified in the
legislation. A copy of the Annual Report 2013-14 must be approved by Council
before being published.

The final draft of the Annual Report 2013-14 has been prepared for consideration by
Councillors and is currently being graphically designed. A copy of the designed
version will be circulated before the meeting. The annual report reviews in detail
Council’s financial and operational performance for the 2013-14 financial year
against the goals set out in the Corporate Plan 2010-2015 and Council’s 2013-14
budget.

The report includes Council’s audited financial statements and the status of projects
budgeted for the 2013-14 financial year, reflecting Council’'s operational plan. Other
content meets Council’s reporting obligations under the Local Government Act 2009
and supporting regulations.

Once adopted, the Annual Report must be published on Council’s website within two
weeks.

ISSUES

The Annual Report 2013-14 has been prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2009 and includes performance information linked to Council’s
Corporate Plan 2010-2015.
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STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Local Government Act 2009 and Section 182 of the Local Government Regulation
2012.

Risk Management

The Annual Report 2013-14 includes details of Council’'s risk management
arrangements. There are no direct risk management issues arising from this report.
Financial

Costs relating to the preparation of the annual report have been met from council’s
existing budgets.

People

The Annual Report 2013-14 includes details of Council’'s organisational structure as
well as information about our employees and Council’'s People Strategy. There are
no direct implications to Council employees resulting from this report.

Environment

The Annual Report 2013-14 includes annual indicators about environmental issues,
particularly relating to the Healthy Natural Environment and Green Living outcomes
within Council’s Corporate Plan. The report will be published online, so there will be
no environmental impact.

Social
A number of social issues are captured within the annual report, including indicators
relating to the Strong and Connected Communities outcome in the Corporate Plan.

Publication of the annual report is a statutory requirement, which provides the
community with a range of information about Council’s activities throughout the 2013-
14 financial year. There are no direct social implications resulting from the adoption
of the Annual Report 2013-14.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans

8. Inclusive and ethical governance

Deep engagement, quality leadership at all levels, transparent and accountable
democratic processes and a spirit of partnership between the community and

Council will enrich residents’ participation in local decision making to achieve the
community’s Redlands 2030 vision and goals.

8.5 Be transparent and consistent in the way we manage the organisation, its
risks and obligations and ensure we are delivering against our priorities.

9. An efficient and effective

Council is well respected and seen as an excellent organisation which manages
resources in an efficient and effective way.

9.5 Ensure robust long term financial planning is in place to protect the financial
sustainability of Council.
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OPTIONS

1. That Council resolves to adopt the Redland City Council Annual Report 2013-14.

2. That Council resolves that the Annual Report 2013-14 be adopted by Council
subject to changes agreed at the meeting.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolves to adopt the Redland City Council Annual Report 2013-14.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

Moved by: Cr J Talty
Seconded by: Cr P Gleeson

That Council resolves to adopt the Redland City Council Annual Report
2013-14 as amended.
AMENDMENT MOTION

Moved by: Cr M Elliott
Seconded by: Cr P Bishop

That Council resolves to amend the profile of Cr Elliott on page 17 of the
Annual Report to reflect that he has lived in Alexandra Hills for 26 years.

CARRIED 11/0

The motion with the amendment became the motion and was put to the vote
and CARRIED 11/0

6 MEETING CLOSURE
There being no further business, the Mayor declared the meeting closed at 1.53pm.

Signature of Chairperson:

Confirmation date:
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Redland City Council

Corporate Plan - A strategic document that

sets out Council’s plans over a five-year period. It
outlines the strategies to be undertaken to achieve
the vision and outcomes in the community plan. It
is a legal requirement under the Local Government
Act 2009 for Council to adopt a Corporate Plan.

External audit — Audit professional who performs
and audit on the accounts in accordance with the
Local Goverment Act 2009, Local Government
Regulation 2012 and the Australian Accountancy
standards, and who is independent of council.

Financial year — The 12 months between 1 July
of one year and 30 June of the next year. This
annual report is for the 2013-14 financial year,
which runs from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014.

Annual Report 2013-14

Glossary of common terms used in this annual report

Full-time equivalent (FTE) — The hours worked
by one or more staff members that are the
equivalent of a full-time employee. As an example,
this may involve a full-time employee working
36.25 hours per week or two part-time employees
each working 18.13 hours per week.

Governance — How decisions are made and
implemented and how organisations are managed
and controlled to achieve objectives. Governance
also describes the ways an organisation can be
held accountable.

Operational Plan — A one-year plan that sets out
activities to be undertaken in that particular year
to achieve the Corporate Plan. An Operational
Plan is a legal requirement for Queensland
councils under the Local Government Act 2009.

RCC - Redland City Council.

Statutory — Required under legislation.
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Introduction

What is an annual report?

Each year, Redland City Council publishes an annual report. This is a requirement of the Local
Government Act 2009. The report provides an update to our community about Council’s finances,
its performance and how we have delivered against our plans.

Some information within this plan is required under legislation. An index of these statutory
requirements, which shows where to find this information, is included on pages 77-80.

This annual report is the fourth to report against the Corporate Plan 2010-2015 (which reflects
the Redlands 2030 Community Plan).

It also includes a summary of performance against Council’s Operational Plan 2013-14.

About Redland City

Traditional (Aboriginal) Owners

Council acknowledges the Quandamooka People as the Traditional Owners of most of the lands and
waters of the Redlands. The Turbal and Yugara/Yugarapul Peoples also claim a connection to a small
portion of mainland Redlands.

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




Introduction continued
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Gold Coast City

Our city
Location: South-east of Brisbane, Queensland
Area: 537 square kilometres

Geography: Mainland, coast, hinterland and islands (North Stradbroke Island,
Coochiemudlo and Peel Islands and the Southern Moreton Bay Islands of
Karragarra, Lamb, Macleay and Russell)

Economy: Retail, health care and social assistance, construction, education and
training, manufacturing, and tourism

Population: 147,437

! Source — Australian Bureau of Statistics (June 2013 estimated residential population (ERP))




Introduction continued

July 2012 - Present

Redland City Council

Division 1 — Councillor Wendy Boglary
Wellington Point/Ormiston

Division 2 — Councillor Craig Ogilvie
Cleveland/North Stradbroke Island

Division 3 — Councillor Kim-Maree Hardman
Cleveland/Thornlands

Division 4 — Councillor Lance Hewlett
Victoria Point/Coochiemudlo Island

Division 5 — Councillor Mark Edwards
Redland Bay/Southern Moreton
Bay Islands

Annual Report 2013-14
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Division 6 — Councillor Julie Talty
Mount Cotton/Sheldon/Capalaba/Thornlands/
Victoria Point/Redland Bay

Division 7 — Councillor Murray Elliott
Alexandra Hills/Capalaba

Division 8 — Councillor Alan Beard
(Deputy Mayor)
Birkdale South/Alexandra Hills

Division 9 — Councillor Paul Gleeson
Capalaba

Division 10 — Councillor Paul Bishop
Birkdale/Thorneside




. . lam incredibly
proud that Redland City remains the benchmark for
South East Queensland councils in minimising rates
increases. Our headline rates have increased by a total
of below 7 per cent over the past three years.

Reducing cost-of-living pressures on residents has
been at the forefront. We have managed to keep
utility price rises for 2014-15 to a modest 3.3 per cent
despite a 14 per cent hike in state bulk water charges,
and we absorbed a 13 per cent increase in electricity
costs and 7 per cent hike in our fuel costs.

This was done while maintaining our generous rates
concessions for pensioners and returning savings from
the repeal of the carbon tax to ratepayers.

Through all of this, we managed to exceed targets
set out in the 2013-14 budget and returned a surplus
while continuing growth in community equity.

Major gains were made through a reduction in our
provisions and a greater focus on the management
of future costs and risks associated with maintaining
landfill sites.

ating bushfire on North
tradbroke Island showing again that this beautiful
part of the world is not immune from disaster. But
through the challenge we yet again showed great
community spirit and resilience, emerging from the
crisis without loss of life or homes.

This spirit is the essence of this City and there is

no doubt our great sense of community and the
dedication and professionalism of Council staff have
played a key part in Council’s positive position.

I would like to thank all those who hold the
Redlands dear in their hearts and look forward
to working with you as we build a City we all
can be proud to call the best place to live, work
and do business.

Councillor Karen Williams
Mayor of Redland City



A Message from our Mayor and CEO continued

CEO’s message

Council continued to consolidate
and focus on improving its
financial performance and
customer service in the past
year, as well as embed its new
operating structure. Our quest
for efficiencies and more
cost-effective ways of delivering
services and projects for the
community has seen our financial
results better our forecasts.

Major gains were made through
a reduction in provisions in this
financial year, much of this
through a greater focus on how
we manage the future costs and
risks associated with maintaining
our landfill sites.

This has allowed us to exceed
the targets set out in the
2013-14 budget and move from
a projected small deficit to a
significant surplus.

After the refocussing of our
attention on the customer and
resident, we continue to look for
ways to make the ratepayer dollar
stretch further, as well as improve
service quality.

Cost-cutting measures have
ranged from simple but tangible
changes, such as the type of
stationery we use, to innovative
thinking on how major projects
can be delivered cheaper

and faster. This is central to

our objective of achieving an
increasingly efficient operation
which is more responsive to
the needs of the community
we serve.

Redland City Council

That is reflected in the

2014-15 budget, which

includes a program of long-
term city-wide projects, while
easing cost-of-living pressures
for residents and setting a strong
financial direction for Council.

That this is being achieved in

the face of revenue constraints
and rising costs is a credit to all
involved. Council staff members
have risen to the challenge and |
have confidence that future issues
will also be embraced with resolve
and determination.

In 2014-15 we will continue
to develop our staff and look
to improve processes to make
dealing with Council as easy
as possible.

Throughout the year, we also
continued to implement our IT
strategy to make Redland City
Council an easier organisation
to do business with, as well

as improve our information
management internally. We are
now part way through the
five-year strategy.

Council continues to encourage
a culture of fresh thinking to
develop better ways of doing
business. As part of this, it

will embark on a review of

its procurement and project
management processes in a bid
to make them more streamlined
and efficient. These reviews will
help us respond to staff members
who continue to work tirelessly
to deliver services and facilities to
the community.

Importantly, we have seen the
organisation’s safety record
continue to improve and we are
injuring fewer of our people as
we strive for a safe, productive
and injury free workplace.

Annual Report 2013-14

We have also made significant
progress on our Priority
Development Areas and hope
to see that continue in 2014-15,
as well as begin the process of
delivering a new City Plan.

In this report last year, |
acknowledged Council’s capacity
to respond to natural crises had
been strengthened through the
development of a community-
specific disaster management
plan. Within weeks, that plan was
put to the test in the potentially
devastating bushfires which razed
much of North Stradbroke Island
—and it certainly proved its worth.

Despite it being at the height
of holiday season, the bushfire
emergency was handled
without loss of life or homes.
It underscored why this plan —
developed in recognition of the
City's responsibility to prepare
well for the safety of residents
- has since been held up as
the benchmark for other local
government areas.

Thank you to all staff, Councillors
and residents for your
contribution throughout the year
and | look forward to working
with you in the future.

Bill Lyon
CEO of Redland City Council
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Developing our tourism

00 Redlands tourism providers
adbroke Island in May as

mit, an initiative of

om Tourism

Inity

otential
emergencies, was credited with helping ensure
the North Stradbroke Island fires were contained
without loss of life or property. The incident again
showed that the Redlands is not immune to
potential disaster and underscored the importance
of Council's emergency management strategy.
Council was also at the forefront of a campaign
to “help Straddie heal” in the wake of the fires,
including supporting the first-ever InTrust Super
Cup rugby league match at Dunwich.
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New local laws process begins

The process of adopting a new set of local laws
for Redland City began with a focus on reducing
red tape and keeping the City safe and clean.

The draft laws accepted by Council align with the
State Government’s model local laws, providing
greater uniformity and streamlining administrative
processes. In the first step in the process, the draft
local laws must go through a State Government
interest check before being made available for
public comment.

Freedom of the City

Redland City celebrated its proud military history
by granting Freedom of Entry to the City to the
No. 95 Wing of the Royal Australian Air Force
(RAAF) in April. A contingent of 150 RAAF
personnel marched up Middle Street, Cleveland,
cheered on by residents and visitors. Redland City
can now look forward to a strong relationship with
No. 95 Wing, the largest wing in the Air Force
with more than 2600 personnel posted to every
Air Force base in Australia.

A commitment to Quandamooka

Council’s connection with and commitment to the
Quandamooka Peoples and the Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander people of Redlands continued
through support for a range of events, Yarnin
Time, National Reconciliation Week, NAIDOC
Week and the International Day of the World's
Indigenous People. Council also participated

in the celebrations of the anniversary of the
historic native title consent determination that
acknowledges the Quandamooka Peoples as the
traditional owners of North Stradbroke, Peel,
Goat, Bird, Stingaree and Crab islands and the
surrounding waters of Moreton Bay.

Redland City Council

Community focus

The ribbon was cut on the $500,000 Macleay
Island community skate park in May, the result of
Council's commitment to the community and a
great deal of work by islanders. The park, designed
for beginners, intermediate and advanced users
and featuring ramps, steps and grind walls for
skaters, scooter and BMX riders, has proved
popular. Looking ahead, Cleveland’s Bloomfield
Street Park is set for a major

upgrade as part of plans to revitalise the CBD
and ensure residents have access to quality
community facilities.
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Milestones and awards

Young Legends Award

Recognises positive environmental outcomes
which encourage and promote youth initiative and
environmental education and/or achievement.

This award was in recognition of Council's
encouragement and promotion of environmental
education with local youth.

In February 2012, Redland City Council initiated
the IndigiKids Club for youngsters aged 8-12
years who have an interest in the environment.
Kids get to participate a range of fun activities
and workshops based around learning about and
helping to care for the Redlands environment.
IndigiKids meet on the first Sunday of each month
and we encourage kids to come along and have
fun, make new friends and help our environment.

Redland City Council facilitates a ‘free trees for
schools’ program, operating from the Redlands
IndigiScapes Centre. Budget is allocated to provide
100 free, locally native plants to each school in
the Redlands. Free expert advice is also offered in
implementing planting programs and managing
the plants.

The Redland City Council Environmental Education
Unit delivered a free professional development
workshop on ‘Using Locally Native Plants in School
Grounds' to school grounds care staff in Redland
City. It was well attended, with 21 grounds care
staff attending.

The Redland City Council Environmental Education
Unit delivers programs for schools as well as for
kids and families during school holidays. Redlands
IndigiScapes Centre also facilitates a number of
family friendly events throughout the year that
cater to all age groups.

The RedSWAP schools pilot program currently
being implemented provides the opportunity

for schools to establish a ‘kids teaching kids’
program under the guidance of Council, related
to sustainability, waste reduction, litter prevention
and recycling.

The Redland Libraries Young People Services team
delivers a variety of programs and activities to a
diverse clientele throughout Redland City. Using

a range of storytelling, reading, craft making,
songs and action rhymes, the team inspires the
imagination of children to encourage a lifelong
passion for learning and literacy. Programs include:

e A new early literacy session entitled ‘Ready to
Read’, which is delivered by team members
monthly. ‘Ready to Read’ introduces children
to the alphabet, numeracy and basic sign
language through a mixture of songs, rhymes,
books and games. This program has been a
great success with very positive feedback and
an average participant rate of more than 30
children at each session.

e A new weekly craft program entitled
‘Crafternoon’, which was developed by Redland
City Libraries Young People Services team for
primary school aged children using the library
after 3:30pm. This craft is delivered three times
each month and is rotated through each of the
three mainland libraries. In addition to engaging
with the participants, it has been a great way
for the Young People Services team to fully
utilise a variety of recyclable materials.

11
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Review of 2013-14 continued

Environmental Innovation and
Protection Award

Recognises positive environmental outcomes
which encourage and promote youth initiative and
environmental education and/or achievement.

This award was in recognition of RCC's
encouragement and promotion of environmental
education with local youth. Activities include;

Collaborative Shorebird Project — Redland City
Council has partnered with Marine Parks and

the Queensland Wader Study Group to monitor
shorebirds. A Redland City Council Wildlife Officer
partnered with a Department of Environment

and Heritage Protection Marine Parks Officer

to undertake the monitoring of shorebirds, in
particular the migratory species at one of our

key feeding sites at Thorneside. This roost was
monitored once a month for four hours (two hours
on either side of the high tide) with numbers and
species of feeding birds recorded as well as any
signs of disturbance.

Redland City Council also undertakes a number of
annual fauna surveys to monitor our local wildlife.
These include:

Glossy Black Cockatoo Survey - conducted on
the mainland, North Stradbroke Island and the
Southern Moreton Bay Islands;

Coochiemudlo Curlew Count - held on the
second Saturday in February;

Community Koala Phone Survey - held on
the third weekend in October, both Saturday and
Sunday;

North Stradbroke Island Koala Survey - held
on the second Saturday in October; and

Redlands Koala Watch - residents are invited
to report koala sightings whenever they come
across them.

Annual Report 2013-14

Redland City Council continues to provide support
for the innovative IndigiScapes Centre at Capalaba
which was opened in 2000. This centre is an
environmental education hub for the Redlands
and showcases local native plants though its
landscaped botanic gardens and bushland tracks.
The intent of this is to promote locally indigenous
species, in a garden situation, as viable alternatives
for local gardeners and reduce reliance on non-
native species. Council spends hundreds of
thousands of dollars every year managing escaped
garden plants in its reserves and the provision of
these gardens represents a long-term vision to
overcome this. For nearly 14 years, visitors have
come to relax, enjoy and learn in a beautiful bush
setting with visitation growing every year from
8000 in 2001 to more than 45,500.

The centre is also home to a large and diverse
range of environmental education programs and
interpretive education, making the centre a hub
for knowledge. The programs run from the centre
include:

Community Bushcare Program — Partners with
members of the community who work together
to achieve coordinated conservation outcomes on
Council land;

Habitat Protection Programs — Encompassing
the delivery of six environmental extension
programs targeted at private landholders. Council
realises that the environment does not recognise
property borders and only through partnerships
with private landholders and businesses can

we aim to achieve our desired environmental
outcomes;

Wildlife Programs — Redland City Council
provides a number of programs and supports
many organisations in raising community
awareness of local wildlife, including koalas; and

Schools Environmental Education Program —
working with schools in the Redlands to provide
activities that complement the curriculum. A
growing number of child care centres also have
been involved in programs as their guidelines
require them to incorporate sustainability practices
in their centres.
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Australia-Japan Environmental
Education Partnerships

The Redlands IndigiScapes Centre is undertaking
wildlife conservation training and education with
visiting Japanese university students (veterinary,
research and zoo keepers). These visits, which
occur four times a year, are in conjunction

with the Australia-Japan Wildlife Conservation
and Education Foundation. Students receive a
presentation on Redlands wildlife issues and
conservation actions, as well as an opportunity to
participate in tracking wild koalas and a visit to a
local flying-fox roost and a rehabilitation centre.

The Redlands IndigiScapes Centre has completed

a pilot two-way broadcasting education program
with students at Kani Technical High School.

This project is an environmental and social study
program using foreign languages for primary

and junior high school students via two-way live
internet broadcasting between Australia and
Japan. In this pilot study, Japanese primary and
junior high school students were connected via the
internet with Australian environmental and wildlife
conservation facilities and groups.

Episodes of a Japanese documentary TV program
titled "The Miracle Earth" were filmed in the
Redlands. This documentary is to be broadcast
by one of the major commercial television
networks in Japan. The segments that were
filmed in Australia introduced the unique biology
of Australian wildlife, focusing mainly on our
marsupials and monotremes.

Parks and Leisure Australia Planning
Award (State and National) — Redland
Open Space Strategy

The Redland City Council Open Space Strategy
was entered into the State and National Parks
and Leisure Australia Awards. The Strategy won
the state award but missed out on winning the
national award. Parks and Leisure Australia is the
peak industry body for the parks, sport, recreation
and leisure sector and the state and national
awards recognise best practice projects and
programs across the country.

The Open Space Strategy was recognised for
its uniqueness and innovation as well as its
consultation process that involved Walk and
Talk Days in several Redland neighbourhoods
and the use of the Heart Foundation Walkable
Neighbourhood Audit. The strategy is activity
based and aimed at aligning fit-for-purpose
open space with a range of recreation activities
in every neighbourhood in Redland City. The
strategy was written specifically to be used for
the Redland Planning Scheme and Open Space
Asset Management Plan however its uses have
proved to range far and wide and its detailed
recommendations are used to resolve many
local open space issues.

Award-winning commitment wins award
for excellence in teamwork

Council's commitment to informing and preparing
the community during the potentially devastating
North Stradbroke Island fires in December —
January earned the Communication, Engagement
and Tourism Group the state’s highest local
government accolade for teamwork.

The Local Government Managers’ Association
Queensland Award for Excellence recognised
the team’s 24/7 communication that included
the latest in social media and crowd sourcing
as well as more traditional methods of ensuring
community safety and preparedness.

The team also was a finalist in the prestigious
national Social Media Innovation for Government
and Public Sector Award 2014.
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4 continued

Mayor and CEO Employee

Excellence Awards
The Mayor's Award is

a formal award that

specifically aims to recognise outstanding
personal contribution by employees that directly
benefits the Redlands community. It is open to
all employees of Redland City Council both as

individuals or teams.

Winners and runners up for 2013

Winner Runner up

The CEO Awards are formal awards recognising
excellence in categories determined by the
Executive Leadership Group to drive performance
against organisational objectives. In 2013

these categories are Leadership, Collaboration,
Innovation and Efficiency, with winners selected
based on criteria against these categories.

Mayor's Award Lex Smith Peter Gould

CEO Award for Deborah Corbett-Hall Kym Banks

Leadership

CEO Award for Laurence Blacka Richard Smith, Dominic Newland,
Innovation David Katavic, Nigel Carroll and

Rob Walford

CEO Award for
Collaboration

Lisa Barry, Melissa Brooks,
Bev Cosgrove, Tim Goward
and Meredith Nestor

Carol Williams, Tim Mitchell, Giles Tyler,
Bradley Taylor, Matthew Ingerman,
Deluna Lawrence and Michael Holland

CEO Award for
Efficiency

Tammy Hyde and
Peter Coleman

Tasmin Young

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




Mayor and Councillors’ information

large number of community
organisations. She is a graduate
of and holds a Diploma with the
Australian Institute of

Company Directors.

volved, in a large number of
school, sporting and community
organisations. She is a graduate of
and holds a Diploma with
the Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

15

and was

ounder/director of a
successful IT company. He speaks
Japanese, has tourism industry
experience, and has been a
professional skier, snowboarder
and scuba diver.
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Division 3
Councillor Kim-Maree
Hardman

Cleveland South/Thornlands
Elected: 2012

Kim-Maree has experience

in a variety of roles including
working as a legal secretary
in the United States, teaching
English in South Korea, and
managing a small business in
Capalaba before raising three
school-aged children. Kim-
Maree has studied dance for
14 years and achieved a high
level of success culminating in
dancing with the Australian
Ballet Company, Queensland
Ballet Company and the Royal
Ballet in England.

Division 4

Councillor Lance Hewlett
Victoria Point/
Coochiemudlo Island/
Thornlands/Redland Bay
Elected: 2012

Lance has experience across a
range of sectors including the
state government, where he
was the Procurement Officer/
Manager of the then State
Stores Board. He then moved
into sales and marketing in the
private sector with positions
including National Sales
Manager of one of Australia’s
leading paper merchants/
importers and Queensland State
Manager of a major distributor
in the graphic and signage
industry.

Annual Report 2013-14

Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Division 5

Councillor Mark Edwards
Redland Bay/

Southern Moreton Bay Islands
Elected: 2012

Mark has an association with
the Redlands spanning nearly
40 years. He started his working
life at a bank in Cleveland,

a career which spanned 20
years and saw him climb

the ranks through various
accountancy and manager
positions, culminating in a
regional management position
in Brisbane. He also engaged

in a number of business
activities outside banking,
primarily in tourism and small-
scale residential property
development.
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Division 6

Councillor Julie Talty
Mount Cotton/Sheldon/
Thornlands/Victoria Point/
Redland Bay

Elected: 2012

Julie holds academic
qualifications including a
Bachelor of Communication, a
Bachelor of Arts with Honours in
Media Studies, and a Graduate
Diploma in Teaching (Secondary
and Middle Years). She has
taught at local schools, owned
and operated small businesses,
and worked for large corporate
entities in publishing. Julie

has lived her whole life in

the Redlands and is involved

in a number of community
organisations.

Division 7

Councillor Murray Elliott
Alexandra Hills/Capalaba
Elected: 1997

Murray worked in the electricity
industry at a senior level before
running his own successful retail
businesses. He was elected to
Council in 1997 and has held
many chair positions as well as
the role of deputy mayor. He
has lived in Alexandra Hills for
26 years.

Division 8

Councillor Alan Beard
(Deputy Mayor)

Birkdale South/Alexandra Hills
Elected: 2012

Alan has been a professional
musician for more than

40 years, working as a writer, 17
arranger and manager in the
music industry. He worked as
community fundraising manager
for both the Spina Bifida
Association of Queensland

and the Leukaemia Foundation
of Queensland before being
elected to Council for the first
time in 1997. Before being
re-elected in 2012, he worked
as a professional musician.
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Division 9
Councillor Paul Gleeson
Capalaba

Elected: 2012

A Redlands resident for 20 years,
Paul’s work history varies from
senior retail management roles
to successfully running his own
company within the city for the
past nine years.

Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Division 10

Councillor Paul Bishop
Birkdale/Thorneside
Elected: 2012

Raised in Wynnum, Paul
graduated from QUT (Drama)

in 1986. He works in film,
television, radio and has
performed with every major
theatre company in Australia.

He has served on Actors Equity’s
National Performers Committee
and as an associate artist with the
Queensland Theatre Company.
Paul spent seven years acting in
the police drama Blue Heelers
and moved to Birkdale with

his four children in 2004. An
entrepreneur, presenter, MC,
teacher and media maker, Paul
founded Arts Evolution in 2005.
He is a trained cluster facilitator,
attended the UK'’s Skoll World
Forum on Social Entrepreneurship
in 2008 and opened The Red
Place, a co-working hub and
innovative space, in 2013.

Annual Report 2013-14
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Councillors’ meeting attendance

Statutory meetings attended
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Councillors' remuneration

In accordance with the Local Government Requlation 2012, the Local Government Remuneration and
Discipline Tribunal is responsible for determining the maximum remuneration payable to the Mayor,
Deputy Mayor and Councillors. The remuneration for Redland City Council Councillors for the period

1 January 2013 to 30 June 2014, which was determined in the 2012 Local Government Remuneration
and Discipline Tribunal report, is detailed below.

Mayor $154,636
Deputy Mayor ~ $105,434
Councillor $91,376

Councillors, including the Mayor and Deputy Mayor, did not receive an increase to their remuneration
during the 2013/14 financial year.
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Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Expenses reimbursement and provision of facilities for Councillors?

Head of power

Section 250 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012
defines the requirements for
the reimbursement of expenses
and provision of facilities for
Councillors.

The objectives of this policy are to:

e ensure compliance with
community expectations
and statutory requirements
relating to the payment or
reimbursement of legitimate
expenses and provision of
facilities for Councillors while
carrying out their duties and
responsibilities as elected
representatives of the Redland
City Council, and

e ensure that all Councillors
have the facilities and other
support necessary to perform
their civic duties.

Policy Statement

The payment and/or reimbursement of expenses and provision
of facilities for Councillors must only be for the actual cost of
legitimate business use and only in accordance with the Local
Government Act 20009.

Council is committed to ensuring that Councillors are provided
with the facilities required to enable them to perform their duties.

Councillors should not be financially disadvantaged when carrying
out the requirements of the role of Councillor and should be
fairly and reasonably compensated in accordance with statutory
requirements and community expectations.

The payment and/or reimbursement of expenses and provision
of facilities for Councillors:

* is to be open and transparent, prudent, responsible,
acceptable to the community and in accordance with
statutory requirements

e based on ensuring economy and efficiency, and
e subject to budget provisions.

Council's annual report must contain a copy of the policy and a
copy of any resolution made during the year authorising payment
of expenses or provision of facilities to Councillors. The annual
report must also include particulars about the expenses incurred
by, and the facilities provided to each Councillor.

Spouses, partners and family members of Councillors are not
entitled to reimbursement of expenses or to have access to
facilities allocated to Councillors.

For details about entitlements in regard to the payment or
reimbursement of councillor expenses and the provision
of facilities for councillors, refer to GL-3076-001 Guideline
— Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities for
Councillors.

Failure to comply with this policy and guidelines, or
misappropriation of expenses or facilities, may constitute
‘misconduct’ and/or be an offence under the Criminal
Code Act 1899.

2No amendments to this policy have been made since October 2012.
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Mayor and Councillors” information continued

SCOPE
This policy provides for:

e Payment of expenses
incurred, or to be
incurred, by the
Councillors in the
course of discharging
their duties and
responsibilities as
Councillors; and

e Provision of facilities to
the Councillors for that
purpose.

This policy does not
provide for salaries or
other forms of Councillor
remuneration, nor does
it provide reimbursement
for non-business related
expenses unless
specifically stated.

DEFINITIONS

Authorising person is the person with delegated authority to approve
expenditure or reimbursement for Councillor expenses and facilities.

Council business means official business conducted on behalf of, and/or
approved by Council, where a Councillor is required to undertake certain
tasks to satisfy legislative requirements or achieve business continuity for
the Council. Council business should result in a benefit being achieved
either for Council, the local government area or the community.
Council business includes functions and events that are a statutory
requirement of the Councillor’s role, or are officially recorded
in minutes or other public records. This might also include attending an
event or function to perform official duties or as an official Council
representative, such as:
e ceremonial openings of buildings or facilities
o fétes, festivals and carnivals
e annual or presentation dinners
e public meetings
e private meetings arranged through official Council channels (i.e.
documented in official records or diary) for the purpose of conducting
bonafide discussions relating to the business of Council
e any other meeting, event or function described in section 107(4) Local
Government Act 2009 under ‘Insurance of Councillors’, for example,
attendance at:
- meetings of the local government or its committees that the
Councillor is entitled or asked to attend
- meetings for a resident of the local government area
- conferences, deputations, inspections and meetings at which the
Councillor's attendance is permitted by the local government
- official functions organised for the local government.
e gathering of information by a Councillor necessary to inform him or
her of an incident of interest to Council or which properly falls within
the responsibility of Council.

Councillors means all Councillors, including the Mayor and
Deputy Mayor.

Civic duties means Council business.
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Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Discretionary training is any training that is not determined by Council as “mandatory”.
Expenses refers to expenses described in the Guidelines.

Facilities refers to the facilities deemed necessary to assist Councillors in their role as shown in the
Guidelines.

Mandatory training is any training in a list that Council resolves that all, or one or more Councillors
must attend.

Meal allowance is the daily amount allowed for meals while travelling on Council business.
Official capacity refers to activities undertaken while on Council business.
Public record is any record created, received or kept in an official capacity.

Representing Council a Councillor is representing Council when Council resolves that the Councillor
is to attend an event or function as a representative of Council.

Travel advance is a cash payment paid in advance for anticipated expenses associated with travelling
on Council business. A travel advance may include expenses for meals, accommodation and incidentals.
All expenses must be reconciled after the travel has occurred.

Related Policies/Legislation/Documents

e [ocal Government Act 2009

e [ocal Government Regqulation 2012

® GL-3076-001 Guideline — Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities for Councillors
e Redland City Council Procurement Manual

® |/ncome Tax Assessment Act 1997

e Taxation Rulings issued by the Australian Taxation Office

Reporting Requirements
¢ Disclosure of publicly funded overseas travel — Annual Report
e Domestic and international travel — Council reports and Annual Report (international only)

e Resolutions made during the year authorising the payment or provision of remuneration, including
expenses paid or facilities provided to Councillors or members of committees of the local
government — Annual Report

e Particulars of the total remuneration paid or provided, including expenses paid or facilities provided
to each Councillor during the year and the total superannuation contributions paid for each
Councillor during the year — Annual Report

e A copy of POL-3076 Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities for Councillors — Annual
Report and Council’s website

e Changes to POL-3076 — advertised in local newspaper on the Council’s website.
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Mandatory Training for Councillors

The following is a list of training requirements
requiring mandatory attendance by at least one,
and in some cases all, Councillors. Guidance

is provided alongside each item. Payment of
expenses incurred in attending these events
does not affect each Councillor's discretionary
training budget:

1. Australian Local Government Association
- National General Assembly. (It is usual
for one or more Councillors to attend this
event. The most senior Councillor, usually
the Mayor, attending the event will be the
official voting delegate of Council.)

2. Local Government Association of
Queensland - State Conference. (It is usual
for one or more Councillors to attend this
event. Council will resolve prior to the
event which attendee/s will have delegated
voting authority as it is usual for Council to
have several votes on each motion before
the Conference.)

3. Local Government Association of
Queensland - Civic Leaders and Financial
Summit. (It is usual for the Mayor, Deputy
Mayor and CEO only to be invited to
attend this event.)

4. Local Government Association of
Queensland - Elected Member Professional
Development.

(All Councillors attend this training.)

5. Courses provided by providers other than
the Local Government Association of
Queensland (e.g. the Department of Local
Government), which relate to updating
Councillors with regard to their core
responsibilities - e.g. changes to legislation.
(All Councillors attend this training.)

6. Redland City Council training programs
which are required to enable Councillors
to fulfil their core responsibilities - e.g.
information technology, occupational
health and safety, Councillor induction,
code of conduct and meeting procedures.
(All Councillors attend this training.)

Mayor and Councillors” information continued

The following is a list of other training
opportunities which, while not mandatory in

the sense that one or more Councillors must
attend every event, are of sufficient relevance to
a Councillor's responsibilities to be of significant
potential benefit to each elected member, and it
is likely that a Councillor will wish to attend and
present their learnings back to the full Council. In
that regard, attendance, while not mandatory, will
not require the use of a Councillor’s discretionary
training budget to meet the associated costs:

7. Local Government Association of
Queensland — Infrastructure Summit

8. Local Government Association
of Queensland — Disaster Management
Conference

9. Local Government Association of
Queensland — Community Wellbeing
Symposium

10. Local Government Managers
Australia — National Congress

11. Local Government Managers Australia
(Queensland) — Queensland State
Conference

12. Planning Institute of Australia —
National Congress

13. Planning Institute of Australia —
Queensland State Conference

14. Institute of Public Works Engineering
Australia — National Conference

15. Institute of Public Works Engineering
Australia — Queensland State
Conference

16. Queensland Environmental Law
Association — State Conference

17. Australian Local Government Women's
Association — National Conference

18. Australian Local Government Women’s
Association — Queensland State
Conference.
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Our organisation

Organisational chart

Human Resources Financial Services

Process & Performance ' General Counsel

Organisational v Infrastructure & Community &
Services Operations Customer Services
" .
e 8 Distribution & Community &
Treatment? Cultural Services
—
Communications ! Infrastructure & Environment &
Planning? Regulation
S

Information Project City Planning &
Management Delivery Assessment

Corporate City Planning Scheme
Governance Spaces Review

Priority .
Development ” City
Project nfrastuctiure

Note': Communications renamed Communication, Engagement & Tourism 28 November 2013
Note?: Distribution & Treatment renamed Water & Waste Operations 9 October 2013

Note®: Infrastructure & Planning renamed Water & Waste Infrastructure 9 October 2013
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Our organisation continued

Organisational chart
(from 17 March 2014)

CEO
Human Financial General Organisational | | Infrastructure Community
Resources Services Counsel Services & Operations e SIS
Services
" Water & Waste Community &
| Internal Audit | | : 1 Y
Operations | [lcultural Services
-CE?wrgarg:mcear;[’i[Og' | Water & Waste| || Environment
Tourism Infrastructure & Regulation
| Information ||| Project City Planning
Management Delivery | & Assessment
Corporate || City Spaces | || Planning
Governance Scheme Review
Priority City
| Development | Lo ctructure
Project
| Process &
Performance*

* The Group Manager Process & Performance moved to Organisational Services Department effective from 17 March 2014




°To 27 June 2014

Redland City Council

Manager Process and
Performance®

Chris Taylor

Advanced Diploma of Project
Management - AdvDipPM,;

Lean Six Sigma (Membership
Lean Six Sigma Division) — MLSSD;
Personal Membership Australian
Quality Centre - AOQ-QLD

3 Eleanor Noonan was Acting Head of Human Resources from 20 May 2013 to 23 May 2014. Amanda Daly returned to the position
on 24 May 2014

4 The Chief Financial Officer left Council on 25 April 2014 and the position filled by Linnet Batz on 16 June 2014

Annual Report 2013-14

General Counsel

Andrew Ross

Bachelor of Law; Bachelor of
Theology; Masters in Health Science



Corporate Plan.

Employee developme

Council continued with its commitment to
employee development with a strong focus
on coordinating and delivering the training
for workplace health and safety compliance
through the skills matrix and the safety
leadership program for managers and
SUPErVIsors.

Council also recognised the need for strong,
visible and capable leadership moving

into the future, to provide long-term
sustainable products and service delivery to
our community. It was highlighted that a
Leadership Development Program needed to
be designed to build capability at all leadership
levels. Consultation was conducted across the
business and tender documentation prepared.
Submissions were received from local and state
businesses. It is intended that 2014-15 will see
the design, development and implementation

of the Leadership Development Program.




Our people continued

A team of professionals across Council
participated in the Local Government Managers
Association Challenge. This enabled experiential
learning at a high level and was a valuable
component of leadership development.

E-learning continues as a focus to ensure
appropriate and relevant training is flexible and
adaptable to Council’s changing business needs.
These modules are rolled out to minimise class-
based training and enhance cost effectiveness.

Other effective training methods have been the
development of operational leadership forums to
discuss whole-of-council topics (i.e. Culture and
Leadership) delivered by the executive team guest
speakers and the development of ‘toolbox talks’,
which are delivered by managers to their staff

on relevant and site-specific topics for discussion
and engagement.

In addition, employees have access to the
education assistance scheme, receiving support
with tertiary studies. This year employees again
graduated with an accredited qualification
(Diploma or Certificate IV) in business-related
areas. These accredited qualifications were
supported through various local government
funding programs.

Traineeships

Our traineeship program continued to provide
opportunities to ‘earn and learn’ across a variety
of departments in a local government setting.
Council currently employs 14 full-time trainees,
one apprentice and hosts 10 indigenous school-
based trainees. Areas of study include certificates
in Business Administration, Horticulture,
Conversation and Land Management,
Information & Cultural Services, Automotive,
Water Operations, and Tourism. In 2014, Council
has received incentives from both the State

and Federal governments to assist with the
employment costs of our trainees. A graduation
was held in January this year to congratulate
and farewell our participants in the 2013

trainee program.
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Employee Satisfaction

The significant change agenda in the previous year
(2012-13) was followed by two staff surveys in
2013-14 to elicit feedback on how changes were
managed, the organisation’s ability to meet our
peoples needs and objectives, and any emerging
issues requiring consideration. The identified

issues and opportunities for improvement in both
surveys included the need to provide our people
with the right skills and resources, to directly
involve people in decisions that affect them, to
raise awareness of the drivers for change, and to
continue to establish better systems, processes
and procedures. Employees are generally confident
in the organisation’s leadership, particularly with
regard to their immediate supervisor and their
Group Manager.

Equity, diversity and equal
opportunity

Council is committed to preventing discrimination
within our organisation. A number of strategies
and initiatives were delivered in 2013-14:

* ensuring the review of all guidelines and
procedures facilitates equity and diversity;

e delivering a new induction framework with
manuals and support materials for all new
employees (including our equal employment
opportunities program);

e providing recruitment and selection training
for employees (including interviewing skills and
resume skills workshops);

e ensuring a cross-gender Council team is
represented at the LGMA Management
Challenge;

e ensuring mentoring, advice and support is
available from Human Resources Advisers;

e supporting and promoting the Employee
Assistance Program;

* investigating equity and diversity training needs
from the staff survey, feedback forms, and
performance appraisals;

e promoting programs to support the personal,
professional and career development (of
women in particular, including Women in
Local Government).



Our people continued

Certified Agreement

The Industrial Relations (Fair Work Act
Harmonisation No. 2) and Other Legislation
Amendment Bill 2013 commenced on

1 December 2013 and provides for modernisation
of Queensland Awards with some aspects of the
Bill being retrospective to 17 October 2013. These
retrospective changes had an effect on the RCC
Officers” and Employees’ Certified Agreements
2013 which were submitted to the Queensland
Industrial Relations Commission (QIRC) for
certification on 7 November 2013.

To ensure clarity, the parties to Council's
agreements (i.e. Redland City Council and the
relevant unions) have agreed to embody the
terms and conditions of both agreements into a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which
preserves the terms and conditions of these
instruments.

Our MOU was created, in conjunction with
unions, to honour a continuation of our current
2013 agreements that were bargained, in

good faith, but not legally honoured due to
retrospective legislation.

The Attorney-General and Minister for Industrial
Relations requested that the QIRC create a local
government modern award. A single modern
award will cover local government and is being
created to replace approximately 20 existing local
government awards. The current 2013 certified
agreements will remain in place until either the
expiry date or until such time Council is directed
to align to the new modern award.

Safety and wellbeing

The Safety First — Redland agenda is embedded
and driven by the development of the annual
Safety Management Plan. Through this, Council
has continued towards its goal of preventing
workplace-related injuries and illness by health
monitoring activities and wellness programs.

Building on the safety culture and introducing
safety leadership programs for frontline team
leaders and supervisors has contributed to a
very well-supported commitment to safety

in the workplace.

A health and safety skills matrix continues to
provide a learning pathway for individual
workplace health and safety training needs.

Council is audited externally every year and our

safety performance is monitored and reviewed

regularly by senior management. During the 2013

audit, further improvements in compliance and

continuous improvements were reported. 31

A series of internal Safety Element Audits
focussing on procedure compliance were
conducted across business units throughout
the year. The audits identified good levels of
compliance across the organisation.

The Competency to Operate Program for plant
and equipment continues to develop and manage
plant-related hazards effectively. This program
provides tools for our employees to conduct trade
training and testing on the job, without relying on
external providers.



Our people continued

The wellbeing agenda continues to grow with
health assessments, health monitoring programs
and functional capacity assessments being
conducted on all manual task-related roles to
address the risk of musculoskeletal injuries and
encourage healthy ageing in our workforce.

The Work Conditioning Area at the South Street
Depot was opened after construction was made
possible through a Healthy Worker Funding
Initiative from Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland. The program provides a control to

Employees at a glance

Employees (total number of employees)

Permanent 749
Permanent part-time 79
Temporary contract of service full-time 67
Temporary contract of service part-time 12
Contract of service (executive) 21
Casual (based on hours worked) 60
Total 988

Corporate profile

Full-time equivalent employees 912
(includes contract of services and

elected members. FTE for full-time

and part-time based on hours of work

pattern and not actual hours worked)

Casual full-time equivalent employees 0.76
(based on hours worked)

Full-time permanent positions 883
Part-time permanent positions 55
Part-time temporary positions 87
Part-time temporary positions 13
New full-time permanent positions 36
New part-time permanent positions 1
New full-time temporary positions 37
New part-time temporary positions 8
New casual positions 24
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minimise the risk of musculoskeletal injuries to
Council workers who are involved in high-risk
occupations by ensuring they have a suitable level
of fitness to perform their job safely.

Further continuous improvements were
made to Council’s e-safety management
through refinements to the Vault electronic
safety management database system. These
improvements allow managers to monitor
compliance activities and see progress on
corrective actions and incidents.

Employees recruited

Internal (under Redland City Council 59
Officers’ Agreement)

External (under Redland City Council 31
Employees’ Agreement)

Total 920

Employee departures

Employee-initiated turnover rate 6.59%
Employer-initiated turnover rate 4.94% i
Employees made redundant 27
Employees redeployed/retrained 6
due to redundancy
Gender balance

Female Male
Executive/Senior 27.27% 72.73%
Management Group
Elected representatives  36.36% 63.64%
Total employees 51.51% 48.49%

Executive Leadership Group

Number of Executive
Leadership Group

Remuneration range
(total package)

paid
$300,000 to $400,000 1
$200,000 to $300,000 5
$100,000 to $200,000 2
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Redland City Council

Right to Information and Privacy

During 2013-14, a total of 41 applications were
received requesting access to Council documents.
A total of 6880 pages were considered for
release to applicants, which is a 21% increase
on the number of pages considered the previous
year. A total of 37 decisions were issued to
applicants, all within legislative timeframes. Of
the 41 applications received, 3 applications were
withdrawn, leaving one application on hand as
at 30 June 2013. Applicants who are dissatisfied
with a decision under the Right to Information

Governance at Redland City Council continued

Act 2009 or the Information Privacy Act 2009
can request an internal or external review of the
decision. During 2013-14, there were no requests
received for internal or external reviews. One
internal review, carried over from the previous
year, was finalised with the original decision
upheld. One external review, also carried over
from the previous year, was finalised with the
original decision varied due to the applicant
amending their scope with the Office of the
Information Commissioner.

RTI/IP Applications Received 2013-14

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

I 2013-14 Applications Received

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

—a— 2013-14 Cumulative Total
—&— 2012-13 Cumulative Total
—&— 2011-12 Cumulative Total
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Risk Management

Council continues to be committed to enterprise-
wide risk management. All significant risks are
identified, managed and mitigated in accordance
with Council’s Enterprise Risk Management
Policy and Framework which conforms with the
Australia/New Zealand/ISO Standard 31000.

Risks identified are recorded in three major
categories: strategic, operational and activity.
Strategic risks are monitored and reviewed
annually and a formal review of the operational
risks, together with a sign-off by Group Managers,
takes place quarterly.

Council has an Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC) which meets quarterly

and the risk registers are presented at this
meeting for endorsement. The risk registers are
periodically presented to the Audit Committee
for review and comment.

Claims statistics are also presented to the ORMC
in line with a commitment to keep executive
management informed about the nature and
number of claims being received and suggestions
are made in connection with the perceived
exposure.

A periodic review of the Risk Framework and the
Risk Assessment methodology was undertaken
during the 2013-14 year to ensure the documents
remain up to date with contemporary standards.

Governance at Redland City Council continued

Fraud and Misconduct Prevention

Council has a Fraud and Corruption Prevention
Policy (POL-3060) that outlines Council’s stance
on fraud and corruption. The policy informs all
Council officers, Councillors, consultants and
contractors of Council’s position regarding fraud
and corruption and the consequences of failing
to comply with the provisions of the policy.

Council is committed to:

e a zero-tolerance approach to fraud and
corruption;

e corruption and fraud control and management
as an integral component of effective corporate
governance;

e transparent and accountable processes
consistent with sound business practices and
organisational standards of compliance;

e preventing fraud and corruption and
investigating all suspected incidents and
taking appropriate action;

e maintaining an integrated Fraud and Corruption
Prevention Framework to minimise the impact
and reduce the risk of fraud and corruption
within the work environment.

The Fraud and Corruption Prevention Framework
is Council’s strategic guideline that:

e defines management and staff responsibilities;
and

e ensures the implementation of robust practices
for the effective detection, investigation and
prevention of fraud and corruption of any
description within Council.
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Administrative Action Complaints

Redland City Council is committed to fair Council received 119 new administrative action
and effective management of administrative complaints that were dealt with under the
complaints and has established a revised complaints process. There was one carried over

Complaints Management Process in line with the from 2008-09 and 18 carried over from 2012-13,
requirements of the Local Government Act 2009. giving a total of 138 complaints for 2013-14. Of
those 138, 126 were resolved under the process

During 2013-14, the following statistics are and 12 left unresolved as at 30 June 2014

reported in accordance with the requirements
of Section 187 (1)-(2) of the Local Government
Requlation 2012.

Complaints reported in accordance with section 186(f) of the

Local Government Regulation 2012

(@) Frivolous, vexatious or unsubstantiated 3

(b) Complaints about the Mayor or Deputy Mayor referred to the department’s 0
chief executive

(@ Councillors complaints referred to the Mayor 1

(d) Complaints referred to the department’s chief executive 2

(e) Complaints assessed by the Chief Executive Officer as being about corrupt conduct 1

under the Crime and Corruption Act 2001

(f) Complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel and/or tribunal 2

(9) Complaint is about another matter 0

Complaints reported in accordance with section 176C of the
Local Government Act 2009 (revised 2012)

(h) Regional Conduct Review Panel orders and recommendations 0
(i) Tribunal orders and recommendations 0
0) Mayor or departments Chief Executive Orders reprimanding a Councillor for 1

inappropriate conduct

Complaint Orders/Recommendations Summary Detail reported in accordance with

Section 186(e) of the Local Government Regulation 2012

(k) The name of each Councillor who was Councillor Craig Ogilvie
subject to an order under section 180 and
181
(1) Description of misconduct or inappropriate Inappropriate use of a Council iPad for
conduct engaged in by each of the personal use.
councillors
(m) Summary of Order or recommendation Order reprimanding the Councillor and

that any repeat inappropriate conduct be
referred to the Regional Conduct Review
Panel as misconduct.
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~ information;

e use of public funds and assets
under Council’s control;

adequacy and accuracy of
accounting and computing
systems.

Internal Audit also:

e conducts special
investigations requested

by the CEO;

provides an advisory
function concerning business
improvement processes and
systems of internal controls.

In 2013-14, its findings
confirmed that a satisfactory
internal control environment
exists within Council.

ne p
Services portfolio and two
independent external members,
Mr Virendra Dua and Mr Peter
Dowling. The Audit Committee
was chaired by the spokesperson
of the Corporate Services
portfolio, Councillor Mark
Edwards.

The primary objective of the
Audit Committee is to help
Council fulfil its corporate
governance role and oversight
of financial management

and reporting responsibilities
imposed under sections

208 - 211 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012
and other relevant legislation.

the management
's strategic risks.

Under its charter, the committee
meets four times per year. The
external and internal auditors,
the CEO, General Managers and
Chief Financial Officer attend
each meeting.

External Audit

Council is audited annually by
the Queensland Audit Office,
which reports to Queensland
Parliament as part of its role

to enhance public sector
accountability. It continuously
reviews and assesses the internal
control environment surrounding
Council’s financial and related
systems and practices. This
provides a statutory mechanism
for external review of Council’s
financial operations and other
corporate matters affecting the
sound management of

the organisation.



Council performance

Delivering the Operational Plan 2013-14

The Operational Plan 2013-14 included 51 projects . At the end of the
financial year, 31 projects had been fully delivered. Projects which were
not completed at the end of the year continue to be monitored until
completion.

Completed 31
Ongoing monitoring until completion 20
Total 51

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

Healthy natural environment

Number of people in the 5,000 5,180 8,816 7589
community involved in
environmental programs

In the 2013-14 financial year there were 7589 people involved in Council's environmental education
programs. This included our private property partnerships (habitat protection programs), Community
Bushcare Program and three main community plantings, wildlife rescue service, school education
programs (both in-school and at IndigiScapes), volunteers at IndigiScapes and the IndigiKids program.

38

There were a further 4600 people who attended the three main environmental events at IndigiScapes
for the year - Wonderful Wildlife (900), Good Gardening Expo (1400) and Indigi Day Out (2600).

Number of koalas sighted as part 28 31 52 64
of annual koala count on North
Stradbroke Island

The annual koala count at the North Stradbroke Island townships occurred in October 2014. There
were 64 koalas recorded in total with a particularly large increase at Amity. There were 15 koalas at
Dunwich (including three juveniles), 40 recorded at Amity (seven juveniles), five recorded at Point

Lookout (one juvenile) and four at Flinders Beach (one juvenile).
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Healthy natural environment
Total number of koala trees planted 7,465 5,318 5,855 6,991

During the 2013-14 financial year, 6991 koala food trees were planted by Council.

Healthy waterways data from F D+ F F
ecosystem health monitoring
program - freshwater creeks

Healthy waterways data from C+ C+ B- C+
ecosystem health monitoring
program - Tingalpa Creek

Healthy waterways data from C- C+ B- B
ecosystem health monitoring
program - Eprapah Creek

Waterway health rating in Redlands  Fair to Good Fair to Good Fair to Good  Fair to Good

Redlands' waterway recovery program delivers a comprehensive local assessment of waterway health
for each of our 11 major catchments and the Southern Moreton Bay Islands. In 2014 the overall water
quality trend for the mainland freshwater creeks was generally fair to good with 66% rating in fair to
good condition. These results suggests that there is an overall decline in many of our creeks since last
year primarily due to low rainfall and less flushing of our creeks as this has been our driest year yet since
this monitoring began.

Council will continue to monitor the creeks and focus on future management efforts for waterway
recovery. We have had major achievements in our Waterway Recovery program which was celebrated
at the IndigiScapes Centre earlier this year.

Total number of new plantings 58,950 67,402 77,086 91,268

Significant planting occurred at the following sites:
e Judy Holt batter — Alexandra Hills

e Crystal Waters — Thornlands

e Silvara Circuit — Capalaba

¢ Wellington Point foreshore — Wellington Point

e Unwin Road — Redland Bay

¢ Ney Road — Capalaba

Number of complaints regarding 1,075 830 593 454
overgrown allotments

There continues to be a steady decline in complaints due to proactive management of
the overgrown process.

Total area (hectares) treated for 2,693 3,525 4,013.3 6,425.9
mosquitoes

There was a significant increase in the area treated for mosquitoes, as well as the number of treatments
required. This was due to variations in weather and tides as well as mosquito breeding behaviour. An
average mortality rate of 96.6% was achieved over the year, which is an excellent result.
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Green living

Annual energy consumption for 3,142,808 2,943,984 2,699,564 3,027,500
Council's occupied buildings kw kw kw kw

This year we started recording Toondah Harbour Business Centre (new site), and ceased recording two
vacated small sites (Oakland Street and Killara Place). There was an increase compared to last year when
compared to the base year measured in 2009-10, the saving is 15.8% and 499 tonnes of greenhouse
gas emissions.

Total creditor payments 37,911,543 44,890,607 43,987,564 37,355,965
to local businesses

From a total spend of $168,935,599 in 2013-14, $37,355,965 (22.12%) was paid to businesses with a
registered address in the Redlands. While Council purchasing is governed by strict legislative requirements
and the need to ensure best value for ratepayers, Council always strives to support local suppliers where they
can demonstrate that they are competitive on price and quality. This report reflects the payments made by
post code and does not capture the businesses that have a registered office in the Redlands but payment is
made to their head office either in Queensland or interstate (e.9.$958,326 for fuel paid to Melbourne and
Sydney offices).

Number of routine environmental 222 209 102 14
licence inspections for environmentally
relevant activities (ERASs)

Due to changes within the Environmental Protection Act 1994 and the Environmental Protection (Green
Tape Reduction) and Other Legislation Amendment Act 2012, the number of Environmentally Relevant
Activities that Council has licensed has decreased from 219 to 14. There were no compliance actions
against these licensed activities in 2013-14.

Percentage of recyclable material 21.93% 22.40% 25% 25.5%
diverted from kerbside collection

The overall percentage of recyclable material diverted from the kerbside collection was 25.5%, which met
the target for 2013-14 as stated in the RedWaste Annual Performance Plan. Overall kerbside waste remained
approximately the same as 2012-13, with an increase of only 15.15 tonnes. A total of 2094 tonnes of green
waste was collected by the kerbside green waste service. Total kerbside recycling contamination rate dropped
t0 8.3%, or 1082 tonnes of waste presented in the kerbside recycling bin.

Total domestic tonnage of waste sent to 437 409 391.55 377.29
landfill per capita/year tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes

Total waste sent to landfill per capita for 2013-14 was 377.29kg (target 410kg). This continuing reduction
in per capita waste to landfill can be attributed to improved recycling and resource recovery at waste
transfer stations, the kerbside green waste collection service and overall reduced waste generation

in the community.
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Embracing the bay
Capital spending on Southern $3,824,650 $3,244,934 $2,493,960 $1,634,933

Moreton Bay Islands

The road program for Southern Moreton Bay Islands completed in the 2013-14 financial year
included the following:

e Eastbourne Terrace, Macleay Island stage two

e Hastings Terrace, Macleay Island

® Ross and Regal Streets, Russell Island

e Browning Street, Russell Island

e Union Street, Russell Island

e Cooee Crescent, Macleay Island

e Tenanne Street, Russell Island - design only

* Beelong Street, Macleay Island - drainage extension

Number of new and upgraded 4 3 3 5
bay access points

e Orana Esplanade beach access ramp

e William Street South, Cleveland, ramp

e Yabby Street, Stradbroke Island, boat ramp upgrade (toe planks)
e Redland Bay jetty vehicle access upgrade

e Russell Island barge ramp upgrade
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Quandamooka Country

Level of community awareness on local 60.4% Unavailable 72.3% Unavailable
Aboriginal history and culture

This data is collected every two years. The next survey will be completed in 2014-15.

Wise planning and design
Total kilometres of cycleways constructed 2.6 km 1.2 km 0 km 2.2 km
Total extent of cycleways in the city 53 km 54 km 54 km 56.2 km

The strategic focus for Council continues to be completing and improving links of the Moreton Bay
Cycleway (MBC), which is part of the Cycleway Trunk Network. In 2013-14, three important sections
of the MBC were completed:

e Hilliards Creek Crossing;

e Masthead to Wharf;

e V/ictoria Point to Point O'Halloran

Further site assessment and planning were undertaken in 2013-14 for linkages in Thornlands,

Victoria Point and Redland Bay.

Total kilometres of footpaths constructed 3.645 km 2.8 km 2.1 km 4 km
Total extent of footpaths in the city 380 km 383 km 385 km 389 km

The new footpaths constructed in 2013-14 continue to add to the existing network, completing
missing links near schools, transport hubs and community facilities.

Number of new attached housing 308 102 60 152
approvals
Number of new detached housing 705 451 446 714
approvals

With another year of tighter global and local economic conditions, the dwelling approval statistics detail
a high level of dwelling approvals. Attached dwelling approvals have increased 153% and detached
dwelling approvals have increased 60% from last year. This increase is expected to continue in 2014-15
and is a good indication of efficient use of available land within the Redlands.

Number of bus shelters provided 27 4 9 3

In addition to the three new bus shelters installed across the City, a total of 52 minimum boarding
points were also installed to meet the requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 and
TransLink guidelines.

Land acquired for open space and nature 70.3 ha 38.33 ha 32.08 ha 6 ha
conservation

Two new public recreation parks (1.1ha) of new trustee land (both with drainage constraints) and nine
new open-space areas for conservation, waterway, foreshore or drainage purposes (4.9ha)
were acquired during 2013-14.
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Supportive and vibrant economy
Total number of international students 114 82 78 81

Schools hosted 81 international students.

Total number of businesses assisted by 690 736 496 770
business support programs

Council’s business support programs undertook 770 activities; which included attending business
meetings and assisting businesses.

Number of visitors to the Visitor 6,891 10,100 27,113 31,083
Information Centre

More than 31,000 people visited the Visitor Information Centre in 2013-14.

Strong and connected communities

Percentage of generally compliant food 97.25% 97.5% 96% 98.5%
businesses

Council monitors food businesses and 98.5% of businesses are generally compliant with the requirements
of legislation, which is an excellent overall level of compliance.

Percentage of residents satisfied with safety 75% Unavailable 76.6%  Unavailable
in the City and their neighbourhood

Research is carried out every two years and is therefore not available for 2013-14.

Number of events managed 20 21 24 29

A total of 29 corporate events were managed by the Communication, Engagement and Tourism Group
during the financial year. These included Redlands Business Expo, Christmas by Starlight, Movie in the Park
and numerous citizenship ceremonies. The events engaged nearly 22,000 residents and stakeholders during
the financial year.

Value of grants committed to community $675,130 $625,103 $849,733  $575,311
from Council

Community Grants Program 2013-14 expenditure totalled $575,310.77. This consisted of the following:
e Organisational Support Grants - $59,945.30

e Project Support Grants - 167,463.60

e Conservation Grants - $67,112.96

e Regional Arts Development Fund - $93,678

e Capital Infrastructure Grants - $187,110.91
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 PLNER T}
Strong and connected communities

Number of sponsorships approved 38 42 24 29

A total of $126,000 in outgoing sponsorship for 2013-14 was expended at the end of June 2014.
The Sponsorship Program was significantly oversubscribed, with 57 applications received and only
21% of dollars sought being funded.

Inclusive and ethical governance
Total number of media liaisons 494 295 369 456
A total of 456 media releases and responses were prepared and issued during the 2013-14 financial

year. This is an increase of 23.6% compared to 2012-13. In addition, more than 88% of releases were
published in the media.

Monthly average number of visits to 53,000 54,904 65,423 62,540
Council's corporate home page

Website visitation has decreased 4.4% from 2012-13. This decrease may have resulted due to
news items being moved to a separate site. The average number of visits per month to our news site
was 4,328.

Number of community 58 51 29 121
engagements recorded by Council

A total of 44 community forums were held during 2013-14 which attracted more than 5,000
residents and stakeholders.

Total number of visits to Council's 7,475 4,105 6,725 3,995
consultation pages

The number of visits to our consultation pages has decreased by 40% compared to 2012-13 due
to a reduced number of on-line consultations during this period.

Percentage of the community who 41.4% Unavailable 47.3% Unavailable
agree they have the opportunity to

have a say on key decisions affecting

Redlands on important issues.

This indicator is only reported every two years because it relates to a question in the Community
Satisfaction Survey. The survey is carried out every two years and the next survey is planned for
October 2014
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Inclusive and ethical governance
Total number of full-time 690° 702 762 749

employees in the organisation
Slight reduction in the number of full-time employees due to organisational restructuring.

Community satisfaction with 47.7% Unavailable 52.5% Unavailable
Council leadership

This indicator is only reported every two years because it relates to a question in the Community
Satisfaction Survey. The survey is carried out every two years and the next survey is planned for October
2014.

Total revenue raised from rates, $95,535,567 $100,405,652 $190,294,552  $197,243,343
utilities, special charges and

separate charges, less discounts

and remissions

The increase in general rates realised from 2012-13 to 2013-14 is approximately 3.6%. This is as a
result of both price and growth increases and is across general rates, utility charges and special charges
as well as separate charges. The budget development process provided Council with price increases
across revenue categories as mentioned above. The total general rate price increase for 2013-14 from
2012-13 was 1.43% and water revenues were reduced from the prior year. During the year Council
revised its budgeted revenues to reflect the growth (water consumption and other growth factors),
resulting in a final favourable variance to the adopted budget of 0.36%.

An efficient and effective organisation

Number of part-time employees in 110 99 85 79
the organisation

There has been a slight decline in the number of part-time employees. This is due to organisational
redesign.

Cash capacity 6 7.2 4.98 6.51

For the year ended 30 June 2014 Council's cash capacity ratio of 6.51 exceeds the target range of 3 - 4
months and is consistent with prior years. The ratio provides an indication of the number of months
that recurrent expenses can be covered by the cash held at the end of the particular period. The 2013-
14 result confirms that Council is in a healthy cash position and is well placed to cover its payments to
suppliers and employees, as well as interest expense on borrowed funds.

°>The annual figure for 2010-11 of 888.09 reported in the Annual Report 2010-11 was incorrect. This figure was for full time equivalent
employees, including part time employees and contractors.
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
An efficient and effective organisation
Level of dependence on general rates 44% 47 % 34% 33.74%

The level of dependence on general rate revenue came in at 33.74% for the year ended 30 June
2014 and is consistent with the prior year. This ratio demonstrates Council's general rate revenue as a
percentage of total operating revenue. This result is within the target range of less than 37.5%.

Operating surplus ratio -11.90% -10.72% -6.71% 6.37%

Council achieved an operating surplus for the year ended 30 June 2014 of $14.3M compared to a
budgeted operating deficit of $2.3M per the Q3 revised budget for 2013-14. This result equates to
6.37% of total operating revenue.

Percentage of female employees in 27% 32% 23.81% 27.27%
management positions

This figure is based on the top three senior management tiers (CEO, General and Group Managers).

Percentage of male employees in 73% 68% 76.19% 72.73%
management positions

This figure is based on the top three senior management tiers (CEO, General and Group Managers).

Percentage of female employees 59% 58% 49.53% 51.51%

Council has a relatively even split of male and female employees.

Percentage of male employees 41% 42% 50.47% 48.49%

Council has a relatively even split of male and female employees.

Percentage of employee turnover 14% 13% 17.87% 11.53%

This figure demonstrates the number of employee and employer-initiated separations.

Percentage of overall absenteeism of 4.92% 4.62% 4.07% 4.98%
employees

There has been an increase in absenteeism and this is being monitored and actioned by management.

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




Our statutory duties

This annual report, covering
the 2013-14 financial year,

has been provided to meet
the requirements of the Local
Government Act 2009 and the
Local Government Regulation
2012. This legislation requires

RedWaste to report annually on
its operations and performance

and includes information on:

¢ changes made to the annual

performance plan during
the year.

impacts of the annual

performance plan, including:

- financial position

- operating surplus or deficit

- prospects

e details of Council’s direction
to the unit.

the Island’s businesses,
community hall and waste
transfer station. RedWaste
will continue to market the
service and explore new
opportunities to expand
the service.

The kerbside green organics
collection service continued
to be rolled out across the
City as an optional service for
residential and commercial
properties. The service aims
to reduce the amount of
biodegradable organic green
waste sent to landfill each
year and diverted 2,094
tonnes of green waste to

30 June 2014. As at 30 June
2014, there were 7,244
properties participating in
the service. The material is
sent to a composting facility
where it is processed into soil
and mulch products.

 long

to achieve key targets
in waste reduction and
recycling.

St. Rita’s and Vienna Woods
schools have been awarded
2 star accreditation in the
Keep Queensland Beautiful
Cleaner Greener Schools
Program, with St. Rita‘s
awarded most-improved
school in the state. Council’s
Waste Education Officer
undertook 95 school visits
and community extension
activities, including school
assemblies and presentations,
waste audits and open days.




RedWaste continued

e Electronic waste (e-waste) recycling at e A contract for the collection, transport
Council’s mainland waste transfer stations and recycling of cardboard at the Russell,
continued to perform well diverting Macleay and North Stradbroke Island waste
395 tonnes of televisions and computer transfer stations was awarded, which aims
equipment from landfill during 2013-14. to divert around 75 tonnes of cardboard

annually and provide much-needed
recycling facilities for the islands.

Key performance indicators

Number of domestic waste and recycling collections

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Waste 52,134 51,606 52,415 53,659
Recycle 51,977 51,539 52,415 53,712

Percentage growth in number of domestic waste and recycling collections

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Waste -2.76% -1.01% 1.57% 2.37%
Recycle -2.68% -0.84% 1.70% 2.47%

Net amount and type of commingled recyclable waste from kerbside recycling collection

(tonnes)

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Aluminium 82 100 92 108
Glass 4,313 3,955 3,484 4,330
High density polyethylene/PET 555 907 806 824
Steel 189 202 182 223
Cardboard and paper 7,179 6,910 7,178 6,371
Total 12,318 12,074 11,742 11,856
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RedWaste continued

Change (percentage) in net amount and type of recyclable waste from kerbside recycling

collection (tonnes)

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Aluminium 3.66% 18.00% -11.96% 17.39%
Glass -7.95% -9.05% -17.19% 24.28%
High density polyethylene/PET 3.96% 38.81% -15.01% 2.23%
Steel 0.00% 6.44% -14.84% 22.52%
Cardboard and paper -4.65% -3.89% 0.79% -11.24%
Total -5.29% -2.02% -5.97% 0.28%

Kilograms per household per week

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Mass of kerbside domestic waste 15.60 kg 14.76 kg 14.54 kg 14.25 kg
stream
Mass of kerbside domestic 4.50 kg 4.38 kg 4.30 kg 5.51 kg
recycling stream
Mass of contaminants in the 0.44 kg 0.46 kg 0.51 kg 0.47 kg
kerbside domestic recycling
stream

Recyclable material diverted from kerbside waste stream (tonnes)

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13
Total kerbside waste 54,379 54,013 54,895 54,790
Total kerbside recycling (including 12,971 12,073 13,750 13,950
green waste)
Percentage of kerbside material 22% 22% 25% 25.5%

diverted from landfill

Recoverable material diverted from landfill at waste transfer stations

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Total waste received at transfer 63,374 61,301 74,353° 65,471
stations
Materials diverted for recycling/reuse 28,469 33,435 42,785 39,138
at transfer stations
Percentage of recoverable material 45% 55% 58%’ 60%
diverted from landfill at transfer
stations

6 The figure provided in the 2012-13 Annual Report of 70,666 was incorrect. The figure has been changed to reflect the correct figure in this report.

7 The figure provided in the 2012-13 Annual Report of 61% was incorrect. The figure has been changed to reflect the correct figure in this report.



RedWaste continued

Performance Indicators

Program  Component Performance measure 2012-13 2013-14
Waste and  Domestic waste Percentage of missed 0.026% 0.028%
recycling services complaints
collections  General waste Percentage of other 0.003% 0.004%
complaints
Kerbside recycling Recycling rate per service 5.76 kg 5.51kg
Kerbside recycling Recycling rate per capita 2.15 kg 2.06kg

Kerbside recycling

Total tonnage recycled
(tonnes)

11,742 tonnes

11,856 tonnes

Transfer station recycling Net financial returns from

the sale of recyclables

$623,602

$786,649

Transfer station recycling Total tonnes recycled

5,832 tonnes

10,734 tonnes

Green waste recycling

Total tonnes recycled

36,952 tonnes

30,543 tonnes

Total recycling statistics

Total recycling statistics

54,527 tonnes

53,133 tonnes

KPlI Key performance indicator

Frequency APP* yearly Yearly KPI

target achieved
Community 1 Total kgs of domestic waste landfilled Monthly Max 410 kg 377 kg
and per capita per year
customers 2 % recyclable material diverted from Monthly Min 25% 25%
kerbside collection (recycling and
green waste bin only)
3 Total tonnes of waste transported to Monthly < 58,000 55,628
BCC facilities
4 Recoverable material diverted from Monthly >50% 60%
landfill at RCC transfer stations
5 % compliance with waste DEHP Quarterly Min 98% 99%
licence requirement
Financial 6  Operating performance (actual to Monthly +/- 5% -1.35%
Internal budget operating expenditure)
processes 7  Earnings before interest, tax and Monthly +-5% 0.42%
depreciation (EBITD)
8  Operating cost per tonne of waste Monthly < $168 $137.35

* Annual Performance Plan

Redland City Council

Annual Report 2013-14



RedWaste continued

All KPIs were met during the 2013-14 financial year:

RedWaste Business Unit Annual
Performance Plan

Council adopted the RedWaste Annual
Performance Plan (APP) at the General Meeting
held on 24 July 2013. The APP includes the:

unit's objectives

nature and extent of the significant business
RedWaste is to conduct

unit’s financial and non-financial performance
targets

nature, extent, cost of and funding for the
community service obligations the unit must
perform

unit's notional capital structure, and treatment
of surpluses

unit’s proposed major investments
unit's outstanding and proposed borrowings

unit's policy on the level and quality of service
consumers can expect

delegations necessary to allow the unit to
exercise autonomy in its commercial activities

type of information that the unit’s report to the
local government must contain.

Council decisions affecting the RedWaste
business unit during 2013-14

A tender submitted by Visy Recycling for the
collection and recycling of cardboard at RCC
mainland waste facilities was accepted.

A tender submitted by lolar Operational Services
for the collection and recycling of cardboard at
RCC island waste facilities was accepted.

e Fee exemptions for waste disposed by

registered not-for-profit organisations and
community groups under Council’s community
service obligations were provided.
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RedWaste continued

Other significant activities during 2013-14 Community service

The State Government embarked on a process for developing a obligations

new industry-led waste strategy. The strategy has been developed As directed by Council,
collaboratively with a steering committee comprising representatives RedWaste provided a range of
from business and industry, the waste and resource recovery sector, waste management services to
local government, and community and environment groups. the community. These services,
The draft strategy proposes a high-level vision and direction for known as community service
Queensland over the next 10 years. Key features and targets include: obligations, required Council

to reimburse RedWaste for

e reducing waste generation by 5% per capita;
e increasing total recycling and resource recovery to 55%;
e priority wastes and areas for action.

The draft strategy focuses on the waste management hierarchy:
avoid, reduce, reuse, recycle, recover energy, treat and dispose.
Other tools influencing the draft strategy are to drive cultural change
and avoid the generation of waste in the first instance. The guiding
principles include:

e protecting human and environmental health;

¢ sharing responsibility for resource management;
e recognising the cost of waste management;

e regional differences and opportunities; and

o full lifecycle management of resources.

the cost of providing them
as they were contrary to
the commercial interests of

RedWaste.

Financial Performance in brief 2013-14

$000's
Revenue from ordinary activities $21,902
Expenses from ordinary activities $18,952
Borrowing costs $389
Result from ordinary activities (before tax and dividend) $2,560
Total assets $18,823
Capital works program $95
Debt outstanding $664
Dividend and tax to Redland City Council $1,665

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14



RedWaste continued

Financial Ratios 2012-13 2013-14 Variance

% % %
Economic rate of return 7.8% 7.7% -0.1%
Rate of return on operating assets 9.93% 13.60% 3.7%
Debt to total equity 29.69% 31.50% 1.8%

Full Cost Pricing (FCP) Waste 2012-13 2013-14 Variance
$000’s $000’s $000’s
Administration and operational $18,853 $18,331 -$252
overheads
Depreciation $545 $547 $2
Competitive neutrality $75 $74 $1
Rate of return (WACCQC) $1,383 $1,447 $65
Total FCP $20,585 $20,400 -$185
Volumes waste received from 129,248 120,332 -8,916
customers (tonnes)
Average cost per tonne (FCP) $159.27 $169.53 $10.26

Note: volumes of waste received has been updated using total tonnages of waste in 2013-14. This change to the tonnage received has
impacted the average cost per tonne calculation for 2012-13 and 2013-14
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Redland Water continued

Water Supply

Project Description Budget Expenditure
to date

Complete annual water A rolling program of replacing water meters $307,500 $204,215

meter replacement occurs each year.

program

5,292 meters were replaced as at 30 June 2014.

Taylor Road to Kinross Construction of new 300mm diameter water $667,634 $617,764
Road trunk water main main to provide network capacity for the

development of the Kinross Road structure plan

area.

Remaining expenditure will be taken up completing connection works in association with Seqwater.

Fire flow augmentation Construction of new water mains at the $490,038 $359,400
program following locations:

e Cnr Redland Bay Road and Windemere Road.
e Enterprise Street to Weippin Street.
e Mt Cotton Road (Ney Road to Tipuana Drive).

Fire flow augmentations designed to improve the availability of water for fire-fighting purposes within
the water supply network continued across the City this year. Cost-effective delivery mechanisms saw
outcomes delivered within budget.

Wastewater
Project Description Budget  Expenditure
to date
Pump station 6 upgrade — Upgrade capacity of existing pump station $1,430,560 $789,202
ensure adequate capacity through constructing an additional 450mm
exists for development rising main and upgrading of pump station.

Rising main constructed. All pumps, generator, switchboard, variable speed drive and harmonics have
arrived. Detailed design completed. Waiting on official approval from the Department of Natural
Resources. Programmed for January construction to suit stakeholders at showgrounds.

Sewering South East Construction of trunk rising main, pump Nil $425,495
Thornlands station and trunk gravity sewer to connect SE
Thornlands development to South Street sewer.

All work completed. Elected to not install pumps or switchboard until there was a development need in
South East Thornlands.
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Redland Water continued

Reservoirs

Length of water main 1254km
Water meters 53,262
Water connections including 58,806
multiple properties per meter

(MPPM), but excluding MPPM

boundary meter

Water purchased 13,999ML
Water supplied 12,371ML
Total assets $265m

(written-down value)

Treatment plants 7
Pumping stations 150
Length of sewer main 1,141km
Active services (excluding 47,890
vacant land)

Wastewater treated (effluent) 11,385ML
Sludge for re-use 100% (19,201T)
Recycled effluent for reuse 603.3ML
Trade waste generators 771
Trade waste discharged to 382ML
sewer

Total assets $412m

Annual Report 2013-14

Our Statutory Duties

Under the SEQ Water (Distribution and Retail
Restructuring) Act, Redland Water is required to
prepare a ‘Water Netserv Plan’. This plan is now
in place including the required endorsement
from the Deputy Premier that it is consistent
with the SEQ Regional Plan.

Currently, Redland Water is required to report
against its Drinking Water Quality Management
Plan which was reviewed on 27 May 2014 and
approved by the Regulator on 16 June 2014.
Further reviews are required to be completed
every two years. The first regular audit of the
plan must be conducted by 1 July 2016. Further
audits are required to be completed every four
years. Redland Water is required to provide

the Regulator with regular audit reports in
accordance with section 108 of the Act.

Redland Water is required to provide the
Regulator with an annual report, pursuant

to sections 141 and 142 of the Water Supply
(Safety & Reliability) Act 2008 in each financial
year and this report must be made available to
the public.

This report details Redland Water’s performance
for the 2013-14 financial year and fulfils

the business unit’s duties under the Local
Government Act 2009, the Water Act 2000
and the SEQ Water (Distribution and Retail
Restructuring) Act 2009.



Redland Water continued

Environmental Initiatives Trade waste policy
Redland Water continued its focus on improving development:
environmental performance of its wastewater treatment plants, The following trade waste
pump stations and water and wastewater reticulation mains. policies were approved at
Activities for 2013-14 included: the Council meeting on
7 May 2014,
Potable Water
_ _ e POL-1234 Trade Waste
e The _300mm diameter trunk water main from Taylor Road _ Policy (version 2).
to Kinross Road was constructed to provide network capacity
for the development of the Kinross Road structure plan area. * POL-1235 Trade Waste -
Project spend 2013-14: $617,764. discharge charge remission
_ . . for Concealed Water Leaks
* We completed the fifth year of our fire flow augmentation (version 1).
program which is designed to improve the availability of water o
for fire-fighting purposes within the water supply network. * POL-3027 Application
Project spend 2013-14: $359,400. of Wastewater Charges
(version 2).
Wastewater e Trade Waste Environmental
e Continued focus on preventative maintenance of wastewater I\/Ian_agement Plan
treatment plant assets, including preparation of asset management (version 4).

plans for wastewater treatment plants (WWTP).
Completion of new inlet screens for the Cleveland WWTP.

Refurbishment and capacity upgrade of pump station (PS) 134 at
Mt Cotton and pump station (PS) 49 at Victoria Point.

Installation of five generators at water boosters and key wastewater
pump stations.

Upgrade of the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)
system at Dunwich WWTP.

Upgrade of PS67 in terms of rising main, pump, switchboard,
generator and variable speed drive control.

Renewal of 12 pump stations.

100% reuse of all bio-solids produced from the wastewater
treatment plant via land application

Continued work on licence application for Cleveland wastewater
treatment plant, including commencement of soil and groundwater
monitoring programs and purchase of automatic sampler for event
monitoring on Hilliards Creek.

Design finalisation and tendering of the Dunwich sewer project.

DEHP compliance inspections at Thorneside and Pt Lookout
wastewater treatment plants.

Structuring of formal environmental management system procedures
and practices in accordance with ISO 14000.Continuation of
environmental due diligence training for all Redland Water staff.

Odour control improvements to Pt Lookout WWTP in respect to
chemical dosing.

Completion of inflow/infiltration pipe relining upgrades in the
Raby Bay catchment and also segments of Victoria Point.
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Redland Water continued

Delivering on customer service

Customer service standards

Customer service standards (CSSs) describe and
define the levels of service Redland Water commits
to provide its customers for water and wastewater

Below is a summary of Redland Water's water and
wastewater service standard key performance

indicators (KPIs), targets and performance for
2013-14, as adopted by Council in the Redland
Water annual performance plan for water and

services. wastewater services.
KPI Measure Target Actual Comment
Average residential water Litres/day/person Forecast 191 KPI achieved
consumption per person a day —target 200L  consumption
180
Nitrogen load from effluent Average kg Max 110kg  34.5-57.3 KPI achieved
discharge per day per day every month
Operating costs per megalitre of $ per megalitre $2,409 $2,743 KPI not
water treated achieved
Operating costs per property $ per month $342 $333  KPl achieved
serviced (wastewater)
Operating performance % +/-5% 2.89% KPI achieved
(expenditure to budget)
Earnings before interest, tax & % 0-5% -2.57% KPI not
depreciation (EBITD) achieved
% of water samples complying % Max 98% 100% KPI achieved
with ADWG every month
with 100%
result
Water main breaks and leaks # per year Max 96 42 KPI achieved
within distribution system
% of unplanned water % Max 97 98 KPI achieved
interruptions restored <5 hours
Average response time to water # Max 60 27 KPI achieved
main breaks every month
No. of poor pressure complaints # Max 36 15 KPI achieved
No. of water quality incidents # Max 144 95 KPI achieved
per month
Overall number of dry weather # Max 84 42 KPI achieved
overflows
Average response or reaction # Max 60 34 KPI achieved
time to wastewater incidents every month
% wastewater service interruptions % Min 95 100 KPI achieved
restored within 5 hours every month
with 100%
result
Odour complaints # Max 36 31 KPI achieved
No. of WWTP non-conformances # Max 6 6 KPI achieved

with EPA licence over compliance year
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Redland Water continued

Managing Our Assets

Operational performance 2013-14

In fulfilling the duties of its performance plan,
Redland Water provided all stated services and
roles for:

e water supply to customers
e \wastewater collection and treatment, and

e trade waste.

Redland Water also:

e reported monthly to Council on water and
effluent quality, financial and capital project
status; and

e complied with Council’s corporate plan, policies
and procedures, and integrated environmental
management system (IEMS).

Community service obligations

As required by Council, Redland Water provided
several services to the community. Council

paid back Redland Water the cost of providing
these services known as community service
obligations (CSOs).

For water and wastewater, this included:

e concealed water leak concessions and reduced
water access and consumption charges for
not-for-profit sporting and community
organisations $117,333.

e reduced pedestal charges for not-for-profit
sporting and community organisations
$327,519.

Total $444,852

Drinking water quality monitoring

Drinking water quality monitoring is undertaken
through a verification monitoring program
approved by the Regulator. Under the Water
Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 Section
102 and under the Public Health Act 2005
Redland Water must report to the Regulator

any non-compliance with health guidelines or
report an event that may impact public health.
100% compliance with Australian Drinking Water
Guidelines was achieved in 2013/14.

Redland Water is required to provide the
Department of Energy and Water Supply with
yearly reports within 120 business days of the
end of the financial year.
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Redland Water continued

Snapshot of our financial performance

Water and wastewater services

Financial performance

Revenue from ordinary activities

2013-14 $million

Expenses from ordinary activities

Borrowing costs

Result from ordinary activities
(before tax and dividend)

Total assets

Debt outstanding

Dividend and tax to RCC

Water and wastewater services
Financial performance

Actual 2013-14

Operating revenue $96,757,000
Operating expenses $86,567,000
Operating surplus/(deficit) $10,187,000
Capital works program $7,470,000

Financial ratios

Economic rate of return 4.4%
Rate of return on operating assets 1.50%
Debt to total equity 96.57%
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Redland Water continued

Corporate Governance

Cross-subsidies

The Guidelines for Identification and Measurement of Cross-Subsidies issued by the Department
of Environmental Resources Management were applied to determine any cross-subsidies for water
and wastewater services for 2013-14.

Full cost pricing Water Wastewater
Administration and operational overheads $22,979,840 $16,428,700
Depreciation $6,016,511 $10,512,282
Competitive neutrality $27,703 $41,555
Return on assets (includes tax and dividend) $11,790,498 $18,244,332
Total Full Cost Pricing $40,814,552 $45,226,869
Volume delivered to / wastewater received from customers kL 12,371,488 9,460,570
Average cost per kL (FCP) $3.30 $4.78

Cross-subsidy reflecting revenue-cost divergence water supply 2013-14

Revenue sources Domestic Commercial Other Consumers Total
Water charges 45,626,482 $7,385,699 $1,214,682 $54,226,862
Other revenues $2,897,624 $33,676 Nil $2,931,300
CSO Nil Nil $117,333 $117,333
Headworks $2,711,015 Nil Nil $2,711,015
Total revenue $51,235,121 $7,419,375 $1,332,015 $59,986,510
kL used 10,409,370 1,684,997 277,121 12,371,488
$/kL contribution $4.922 $4.403 $4.807 $4.849
Difference per kL from FCP $1.623 $1.104 $1.508 $1.550
Cross-subsidy received -$1.623 -$1.104 -$1.508 -$1.550

Cross-subsidy reflecting revenue-cost divergence wastewater supply 2013-14

Revenue sources Domestic Commercial Other Consumers Total
Wastewater charges $33,709,305  $3,346,463 $587,231  $37,642,998
Other revenues $1,123,507 $16,200 Nil $1,139,707
Community service obligations Nil Nil $327,519 $327,519
Headworks $4,098,473 Nil Nil $4,098,473
Total revenue $38,931,285  $3,362,663 $914,750  $43,208,697
kL used $8,136,090  $1,135,268 $189,211 $9,460,570
$/kL contribution $4.785 $2.962 $4.835 $4.567
Difference per kL from FCP $0.004 -$1.819 $0.054 -$0.213

Cross-subsidy received Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(2) An annual operations repo si
is a document that contains the following information fo
the previous financial year:

(a) information that allows an informed assessment of the unit's
operations, including a comparison with the unit's annual
performance plan.

(b) particulars of any changes made to the unit’s annual
performance plan.

(c) particulars of the impact the changes had on the unit’s:
(i) financial position
(i) operating surplus or deficit
(iii) prospects
(d) particulars of directions the local government gave the unit.




Other statutory information continued

Overseas travel

Councillors and Mayor

Name Destination Purpose Cost
Mayor Karen Williams  Taiwan and China Eighth Asia Pacific Cities Summit and  $13,924.50
Business Development Mission excl GST
Staff

There was no overseas travel by staff in 2013-14.

Services supplied by another government

There were no services provided by another government in 2013-14.

Registers
Council maintains registers which make information available to the public.
e Adopted Committee and e Council Policies ¢ Regulatory Fees
Council meeting dates « Delegations o Roads
* Assets e Contact with Lobbyists e Statement of Interests for 65
* Authorised Persons e Local Laws and Subordinate - Councillors
* Beneficial Enterprise Local Laws - Chief Executive Officer

. e Mayor EO Direction .
e Business Activities ayor to CEQ Directions - senior contract employees

e Minutes of Local Government

* Catand Dog - a person who is related

Meetings . .
e Complaints 9 o to a Councillor, Chief
. * Personal Identification Executive Officer, officer
e Corporate Gift (in relation to animals) or senior contract
e Cost Recovery Fees e Regulated Dogs employee

Tenders
There were no changes to procurement tenders in 2013-14.

The Project Delivery Group made no changes to Civil Construction tenders during
the 2013-14 financial year.

Shareholder delegates

There were no shareholder delegates for corporate entities.




Other statutory information continued

Rates and concessions

The Local Government Regulation 2012 provides Council with the powers to grant concessions to
individuals and classes of landowners. Council provides concessions to pensioners on rates and various
other services Council provides to the community.

Pensioner concessions

Pensioner concessions on general rates are provided to eligible pensioner ratepayers on the basis of
Council’s Policy POL-2557 Council Pensioner Rebate Policy.
The concessions available to eligible pensioners on the general rate for the 2013-14 financial year are:
e for ratepayers in receipt of a maximum pension $330
e for ratepayers NOT in receipt of maximum pension $165
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Community financial report

Purpose Summary of key financial performance and

The Community Financial sustainability indicators

Report is produced each Strategically, Council aims to operate within a set of conservative
year as part of Council’s guidelines to ensure it is financially viable in the short term, whilst
annual report to provide sustainable in the medium and long term. As part of its financial
members of the community, strategy, Council has adopted seven key financial stability indicators
customers, business to guide our financial health. In addition to these financial stability
partners and employees indicators, we have five sustainability indicators to help monitor the

with a better understanding  |ong-term sustainability of Council. Financial sustainability for Councils
of our f|_n_anC|aI performance is now the cornerstone of the Local Government Act 2009 and a core
osition over the last responsibility of individual Councils across Queensland.

Throughout the financial year, these indicators are calculated and
reported at monthly Council meetings, as part of a full suite of financial
orts. This means that should there be any deviation outside these
ers, the Executive Leadership and Council will be fully informed
imely, corrective action as required.

mmarises how Council performed against set targets
inancial stability indicators established in our financial
Council achieved or exceeded six of the seven
gets, performing well in our ability to generate cash
tions, meeting all financial commitments in the

r and keeping debt to conservative and manageable levels.
s was achieved while maintaining community services and making
ongoing investment in community infrastructure.

Financial Stability Indicators Target Actual Performance

Level Of Dependence On <37.5% 33.74% v
General Rate Revenue

Ability To Pay Our Bills - . 4
Current Ratio

Ability To Repay Our Debt - v
Debt Servicing Ratio

Cash Balance > $40M $96.24M 4

Cash Balance - 3 to 4 months 6.51 v
Cash Capacity In Months

Longer Term Financial Stability - v
Debt To Assets Ratio

Operating Performance >20% 19.45% x




Community financial report continued

The measures of sustainability are shown in the table below and demonstrate Council’s ability to maintain its
financial capital and infrastructure capital over the long term. Overall, the results indicate a very sound outlook,
with Council meeting four of the five targets. The operating surplus ratio, the net financial liabilities ratio and

the asset sustainability ratios have targets to be achieved on average over the long term (a period of at least 10
years) and are not necessarily expected to be met on a monthly or annual basis. Achieving the target for the asset
sustainability ratio continues to be challenging, however Council has committed to a long-term financial strategy
that works towards meeting this goal. Additionally, Council has adopted a Capital Works Prioritisation Policy
during 2014 to enable the prioritisation of ‘renewals’ of existing assets ahead of ‘upgrade’ and/or ‘new’ works.

Measures of Sustainability Actual Performance
Operating Surplus Ratio 0% to 10% 6.37%

Net Financial Liabilities* < 60% -2.22%

Interest Coverage Ratio** 0% to 5% -0.01%

Asset Sustainability Ratio > 90% 45.65%

Asset Consumption Ratio 40% to 80% 68.48%
About Council’s financial statements Overview of financial results
The audited financial statements of Council set out the Council’s net result was a $38.68M surplus
financial performance, financial position and cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2014. The net
as well as changes in community equity for the financial year result is calculated as total income minus
ended 30 June 2014. total expenditure. The net result includes

revenue set aside for capital purposes such
as the value of physical assets handed to
Council, developer cash contributions, and
other government funding of a capital
nature, as well as expenses of a capital
nature e.g. losses on disposal of non-current

The financial statements have been endorsed by the Mayor

and the CEO as “presenting fairly” Council’s financial result for
the year and these financial statements have been adopted by
Council, demonstrating the responsibility and ownership thereof
by management and elected representatives.

Council’s financial statements are required to be audited by assets. The removal of capital items from
the Queensland Audit Office (QAQ). The audit of Queensland the net result shows Council’s Net Operating
Councils are contracted to audit firms which specialise in local Result, which is more indicative of Council’s

government. The 2013-14 Annual Financial Statements are final  day-to-day operations.
and have been certified by the QAO as at 23 October 2014 to
present a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed
accounting standards (i.e. an unqualified audit opinion).

Below are Council's key financial
performance highlights:

Information at a Glance 2013-14 2013-14 Restated
Revised Budget Actual 2012-13 Actual

$ Millions $ Millions $ Millions

Operating Income 227.77 224.61 221.00
Operating Expenditure (230.03) (210.31) (235.33)
Net Operating Result/(Deficit) (2.26) $14.30 (14.33)
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 18.17 27.75 20.68
Gain on Reintegration of Water Operations - - 200.49
Other Capital Income/(Expenditure) 1.92 (3.37) (2.76)

*This is calculated using net financial liabilities, i.e. total liabilities minus current assets. The negative number indicates that Council’s current
assets exceed the total liabilities. Therefore, Council has outperformed this target.

** This is calculated using net interest expense, i.e. interest expense minus interest revenue. The negative number indicates that Council has
earned more interest than it has spent on borrowings. Therefore, Council has outperformed this target.
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Community financial report continued

Council’s finances demonstrated "business as usual’ during
2013-14. The swing from a $14.33M operating deficit
(total operating expenses exceeding operating income)

in 2012-13 to $14.30M surplus (total operating revenue
exceeding total operating expenses) in 2013-14 is primarily
due to annual increases in rates and charges, higher
residential and commercial water consumption, reduction
in the closed landfill provision (which reduces the
operating expenditure), reduced depreciation expenditure
and lower employee costs.

Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions include
developer cash contributions received during the year
which increased as a result of growth in development
activity during the year.

The 2012-13 net result includes a $200.49M capital

gain on the re-integration of water operations on 1 July
2012.0On 1 July 2012, Allconnex Water ceased operations
and the water operations were returned to Redland
Water. The reversal of the investment in Allconnex and
the re-introduction of the water assets in Council books
gave rise to a non-cash gain of $200.49M because the
returning water assets were valued at fair value rather
than a regulated valuation used when they were part

of Allconnex. Although the transaction was non-cash,

it significantly increased community equity and was
recognised as income in the 2012-13 financial statements.

Income vs Expenses - 5 Year trend

(CPI adjusted)
300,000

N
(=3
o
[=3
(=3
o

100,000

0

Amount ($.000)

-100,000

I Operating Revenue M Operating Expenses [l Operating Result

I I
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Following is a series of tables and graphs that illustrate
Council’s key financial results. Where comparisons

are made between 2013-14 and prior years, the prior
year figures have been increased to take account of
price changes (CPI - Consumer Price Index) to ensure
comparisons are meaningful.

What were our major
sources of income?
(Statement of Comprehensive Income)

The graph below illustrates the breakdown
of income between the major sources of
income for 2013-14.

10

8
7 6 5 !

Sources of Income 2013-14
1 m $75.77M General Rates Net of Discount (30%)
2 m $11.01M Fees & Charges (4.4%)
3 m $18.10M Waste Disposal Charges (7.2%)
4 m $5.67M Developer Non-Cash Contributions (2.2%)
5 m $8.27M Environmental Levy (3.3%)
6 m $6.89M Operating Grants & Contributions (2.7 %)
7 m $22.08M Capital Grants & Subsidies (8.8%)
8 m $3.87M Interest Received (1.5%)
9 $91.87M Water & Wastewater Charges (36.4%)
10 m $8.83M Other Income (3.5%)

Total income received this year (operating
income plus capital grants, subsidies and
contributions) was $252.36M. Removing the
gain on re-integration of water operations, this
result was $3.93M (CPI adjusted), or 1.58%
greater than the 2012-13 financial year.

The major souces of income are general

rates, water and wastwater charges as well as
waste disposal fees. Income from these source
contributed 73.6% towards Council's total
income for the year. Also, the total grants,
subsidies and cash contibutions received during
the year were $28.97M, comprising operating
($6.89M) and capital ($22.08M) elements. This
is an increase of $6.20M from last year primarily
due to increased cash contributions received
from developers.

Council earned $3.87M, or 1.53% of total
income from interest on investments and
overdue rates during the financial year and the
total interest earned outweighed the interest
expense for the year. This result reflects sound
financial management of cash holdings.
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Community financial report continued

What expenses

did Council have

to meet?

(Statement of
Comprehensive Income)

The graph below illustrates the
breakdown of expenses between
the major components of
expenditure for 2013-14.

1

Expenses 2013-14

1 $3.37M Loss on Disposal of
Non-Current Assets (1.6%)

2 m $71.03M Employee Benefits (33.2%)

3 m $86.28M Materials and Services
(40.4%)

4 m $5.04M Finance Costs (2.4%)

5 m $47.97M Depreciation and
Amortisation (22.4%)

Redland City Council

Annual Report 2013-14

Council's expenses for the 2013-14 financial year totalled
$213.68M, which is a decrease of 12.69% compared to the
previous year's expenses of $244.74M (CPI adjusted).

Materials and services expenditure includes the costs of all
consultancies, contractors and other goods and materials consumed
in delivering projects and services to the community. This includes
roads, parks, canals, footpaths, bikeways, marine infrastructure, car
parks, libraries, waste collection, water treatment, swimming pools,
showgrounds, sports fields, community halls and town planning.

As part of the 10 year capital program, Council estimates the cost
of restoring landfill sites across the City. These program costs were
revised during 2013-14 and, together with a change in the funding
structure for this program, resulted in a significant decrease in the
landfill rehabilitation provision. This change decreased our materials
and services expenditure for the current year.

Employee costs include wages and salaries, annual leave, long
service leave, superannuation and allowances paid to all full-time,
part-time and casual staff. Overall, staff wages and salaries were
lower this year as well as costs associated with annual leave and
long service leave.

Depreciation expenses reflect the usage of Council’s assets and
refer to the estimated reduction in the value of our assets due to
wear and tear or becoming technically out of date. This includes
roads and stormwater drainage infrastructure, buildings, marine
infrastructure and plant and equipment.

What is the value of the community’s
assets in our care?

(Statement of Financial Position)

2013-14
$ Millions

Restated
2012-13
$ Millions

Value of Community
Assets

Change

Total Assets $2,208.20  $2,173.65 1.59%
Total Liabilities $119.71 $138.18 -13.37%
Net Community Assets o
(Net Community Equity) $2,088.49 $2,035.47 2.60%
See Financial Statements ‘Statement of Financial Position’ for more information
@
® 00
® 06 06 0 0
® 000 0 00
0 0000 0 0 0
0 ® 0 e O
o ® 00 {
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Community financial report continued

Assets

The total value of all assets controlled by Council was $2.21B at 30 June 2014. This figure is broken down
between current assets of $124.69M (5.6%) and non-current assets of $2.08B (94.4%).

23 Assets In Council’s Care
1 $4.52M Other Non-Current Assets (0.2%)
13 2 m $96.24M Cash & Cash Equivalents (4.4%)
3 m $27.25M Debtors & Other Current Assets (1.2%)
4 m $567.11M Roads (25.7%)
4 5 $397.34M Stormwater Drainage (18.0%)
6 m $257.54M Land (11.7%)
7 m $67.29M Other Infrastructure (3.0%)
12 8 m $62.95M Buildings (2.9%)
ﬁog 9 m $35.85M Parks (1.6%)
1 3 10 m $21.71M Plant & Equipment (1.0%)
7 11 m $9.48M Waste (0.4%)
5 12 m $25.92M Work in Progress (1.2%)
6 13 m $635.00M Water & Wastewaster (28.7%)

Current assets are those that are readily available to meet expenses and mainly include cash and
amounts owed from customers. Cash assets were $96.24M and receivables from customers were
$26.14M at the end of the 2013-14 financial year. Council’s cash balance improved since 2012-13
and moved from $82.60M to $96.24M. Additional capital grants, subsidies and cash contributions
received during the year and some delays in capital and operational projects contributed to the higher
cash balance. Any excess funds Council doesn't anticipate to use within 3 - 4 months are moved to an
interest-earning cash management fund.

Council’s property, plant and equipment assets of $2.08B include freehold land, buildings, roads,
stormwater drainage, water, wastewater, waste, parks infrastructure and plant and equipment. Land,
road assets and stormwater drainage assets were independently valued during the 2013-14 year.
The road and stormwater drainage assets were valued as at 1 July 2013 and revaluation adjustments
treated as corrections to prior year reported balances.

During the 2013-14 financial year Council’s capital expenditure amounted to $49.55M on
work-in-progress and $41.95M on other asset categories (which includes transfers from work-in-
progress). Major capital projects during the 2013-14 year included road reseals and resurfacing, road
reconstruction, wastewater pump stations and wastewater treatment, Southern Moreton Bay Islands,
as well as computer projects works programs.

The graph below demonstrates Council’s total asset values over the last five years.

Total Assets 5 Year Trend

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Community financial report continued

Liabilities

Liabilities are amounts owed by Council at 30 June 2014 and totalled $119.71M.

6

Council’s Liabilities

1
2
3
4
5
6

m $58.98M Borrowings (49.3%)

m $15.25M Trade Creditors (12.8%)

= $114.89M Employee Entitlements (12.4%)

m $0.76M Workers Compensation Provision (0.6%)

m $24.07M Landfill Rehabilitation Provision (20.1%)
$5.76M Other Liabilities (4.8%)

The largest single debt Council owed at 30 June 2014 was to Queensland Treasury

Corporation (QTC). QTC is the state government-owned lending agency from which most

local government and state authorities borrow to finance their large-scale infrastructure
projects. At the end of the financial year, Council owed QTC a total of $58.98M, with

$4.38M payable in the next 12 months and $54.61M due in subsequent years. During the
year Council made a decision to utilise existing cash balances as a priority over borrowings.

As a result there were no drawdowns from loans during the current financial year.

As part of the 10 year capital program, Council estimates the cost of restoring landfill sites

across the City. These program costs were revised during 2013-14 and, together with a

change in the funding structure for this program, resulted in a significant decrease in the

landfill rehabilitation provision.

The following graph shows our total liabilities over the past five years.
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Community financial report continued

The graph below illustrates the level Council's loan borrowings with QTC debt over
the past five years.

5 Year Analysis of Council’s QTC Debt

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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The graph below outlines the ratio of our total loans compared to total assets
over the past five years. At the end of the 2013-14 financial year, total debt
as a percentage of total assets was only 2.67%. This puts into perspective
the relatively low level of borrowings compared to total assets.

Debt to Assets Ratio
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)

5.00%
S 4.00%
]
c
g 3.00%
&

2.00%

1.00%

0.00% ‘

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

The following graph shows how much of Council’s revenue is consumed
in the repayment of interest and principal to QTC. In 2013-14, only 3.54%
of operating revenue was spent repaying interest and principal on our
borrowings. This is relatively low and sitting very comfortably within our
Financial Stability Ratio targets.

Ability to Meet Debt from Operating Revenue
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Community financial report continued

What were the major sources of cash in and cash out?

(Statement of Cash Flows)

The table below compares the main sources of cash receipts and cash paid during the financial years
ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014,

Main Sources of Cash In and Out 2013-14 Restated
$ Millions 2012-13
$ Millions*
Net Cash Received from Operations 42.82 22.85 87.37%
(excluding interest and borrowing costs)
Purchase and Construction of Assets (50.00) (38.99) 28.24%
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 22.08 14.52 52.02%
New Loans Taken Out - 5.87 -100.00%
Repayment of Debt (4.12) (5.35) -22.97%

See Financial Statements ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ for more information
* CPl adjustment included to ensure comparability

The cash flow statement is summarised into three activities:

e Operating activities - our normal day-to-day functions. These include receipts of rates, fees and
charges and operating grants offset by payments for employee costs, materials and services and
interest costs.

¢ Investing activities - include payments for the purchase and construction of property, plant and
equipment and proceeds from the sale of surplus assets.

¢ Financing activities - are repayments of principal on our loans, as well as the inflows from new loans
drawn down in the year.

We started the 2013-14 financial year with $82.60M cash in the bank and ended the year with
$96.24M, exceeding the target for cash capacity in months.

The following graph shows our total cash holdings for the past five years. The increase of Council’s cash
balance reflects the higher capital grants, subsidies and contributions, as well as the lower payments to
suppliers and employees during the 2013-14 financial year.

5 Year Analysis of Cash Balances
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Community financial report continued

To maintain Council’s strong financial position on behalf of the
community, we must maintain and manage sufficient cash from our day-
to-day operations to fund purchases of property, plant and equipment,
repay interest and principal payments on loans and leave enough in
reserves for future requirements.

An essential requirement for any business, including Council, is its
ability to pay its bills as and when they fall due. A good benchmark for
measuring this capacity is called the current ratio, which is the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities.

The following diagram illustrates that the ratio has been greater than 2.00
for the past five years, remaining at a healthy level of 2.75 in 2013-14.

Ability to Pay Our Bills - Current Ratio

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Summary

Council delivered a large program of operational and capital works during
the 2013-14 financial year and achieved this delivery while still exceeding six
of the seven key financial stability indicators.

On an annual basis, Council reviews its long-term financial strategy and key
financial policies to ensure it continues to travel in the right financial direction
and in 2013-14 Council continued to meet all financial commitments and
keep debt at low and very manageable levels. Council balances its long-
term strategies and outlook with in-year priorities and monitors its financial
position and performance on a monthly basis. It also formally revises its
budget each quarter, where required. The budget review process is under
review to achieve efficiencies and ensure timely changes can be made to the
budget in achieving Council’s capital and operational projects. These reviews
are complemented by regular credit reviews conducted by the Queensland
Treasury Corporation to ensure the short, medium and long-term financial
sustainability of your Council.

Redland City Council is once again in a strong financial position to deliver the
planned program of projects and services for the next financial year
and beyond.
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Redland City Council

Definition of Ratios

Level of Dependence on General Rate Revenue:

Community financial report continued

General Rates - Pensioner Remissions

Target less than 37.5%

Current Ratio:

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of
Developed Land

Current Assets

Target between 1.1 and 4.1

Debt Servicing Ratio:

Current Liabilities

Interest Expense + Loan Repayments

Target less than or equal to 10%

Cash Balance - $M

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of
Developed Land

Cash Held at Period End

Cash Capacity in Months:

Cash Held at Period End

Target 3 to 4 Months

Debt to Asset Ratio:

[[Cash Operating Costs + Interest Expense]/12]

Current and Non-current Loans

Target less than or equal to 10%

Operating Performance:

Total Assets

Net Cash from Operations + Interest Revenue and
Expense

Target greater than or equal to 20%

Operating Surplus Ratio:

Cash Operating Revenue + Interest Revenue

Net Operating Surplus

Target between 0% and 10% (on average over the long-term)

Net Financial Liabilities:

Total Operating Revenue

Total Liabilities - Current Assets

Target less than 60% (on average over the long-term)

Interest Cover Ratio:

Total Operating Revenue

Net Interest Expense on Debt Service

Target between 0% and 5%

Asset Sustainability Ratio:

Total Operating Revenue

Capital Expenditure on Replacement of Assets
(Renewals)

Target greater than 90% (on average over the long-term)

Asset Consumption Ratio:

Depreciation Expenditure

Written Down Value of Infrastructure Assets

Target between 40% and 80%

Annual Report 2013-14

Gross Current Replacement Cost of Infrastructure
Assets




Index — statutory information

State Government legislation requires councils to include specific information in an annual report each
year. The table below provides an index of where you can find that information throughout this 2013-14
report. In some instances, the ‘provision’ column summarises the Act requirements for the sake of space.
For the full wording for each provision, please refer to the source legislation.

Local Government Act 2009
Requirement Topic Provision

Section 41 Beneficial Must contain a list of all the beneficial enterprises that the
enterprises local government conducted during the financial year

Section 45 Significant Must:
business (a) contain a list of all the business activities that the local
activities government conducted during the financial year; and
(b) identify the business activities that are significant
business activities; and
(c) state whether or not the competitive neutrality principle
was applied to the significant business activities, and if
the principle was not applied, the reason why it was
not applied; and
(d) state whether any of the significant business activities
were not conducted in the preceding financial year,
i.e. whether there are any new significant business
activities

Section 201(1) Remuneration 1) Must state:

(a) The total of all remuneration packages that are
payable to the senior management of the local
government

(b) The number of employees in senior management
who are being paid each band of remuneration

Local Government Regulation 2012

Section 182 Preparation of 1) Prepare an annual report

annual report 2) Adopt within 1 month after the day the auditor-general’s

report on the financial statements is received

3) Annual Report placed on Council website within 2
weeks after council adopting the Annual Report

Section 183 Financial (a) General purpose financial statement, audited by the 81
statements auditor-general

(b) The current year financial sustainability statement for
the financial year, audited by the auditor-general

(c) The long term financial sustainability statement for the
financial year and

(d) Auditor-General’s report about the general purpose
financial statement and the current year financial
sustainability statement

Section 184 Community Provide community financial report for the financial year 67
financial
report

Section 185 Particular (a) Provide a copy of resolutions made under section 250(1) 22
resolutions (b) Provide a copy of resolutions made under section 206(2)




Index — statutory information continued

Section 186

Councillors

(a) For each councillor, total remuneration (including
superannuation contributions) paid to the councillor
for the year

(b) Expenses incurred by and facilities provided to each
councillor under the expenses reimbursement policy

21

(c) A copy of the local government’s expenses
reimbursement policy

22

(d) Number of local government meetings attended by
each councillor

19

(e) The number of:
i. orders and recommendations made under section
(180(2) or (4) of the Act
ii. orders made under section 181 of the Act
(f) Each of the following:

i.  name of each councillor for whom order or
recommendation made under Section 180 or 181
of the Act

ii. description of the misconduct in inappropriate
conduct for each councillor

ii. summary of order of recommendation made for
each councillor

(g9) The number of:

i. complaints about conduct or performance for
which no further action take under section 176C(2)
of the Act

ii. complaints referred to the CEO under section
176C(3)(a) (i) of the Act

ii. complaints referred to the Mayor under section
176C(3) (a)ii) or (b)(i) of the Act

iv. complaints referred to the CEO under section
176C(4)(a) of the Act

v. complaints assessed by the CEO as being about
official misconduct

vi. complaints heard by a conduct review panel

vii. complaints heard by the tribunal

viii. complaints to which section 176C(6) of the
Act applied

36

Redland City Council

Annual Report 2013-14



Index — statutory information continued

Section 187 Administration 1) Must contain a statement about: 36
action (a) dealing fairly with administrative action complaints
complaints (b) how Council has implemented its complaints

management process and assessing its performance
in resolving complaints
(2) Must contain particulars of:
(a) The number of:
i. administrative action complaints made
ii. administrative action complaints resolved under
the complaints management process
iii. administration action complaints not resolved
(b) The number of administrative action complaints
under paragraph (a)(iii) that were made in a
previous financial year

Section 188 Overseas 1) Must contain information about any overseas travel 65
travel during the financial year
(a) for a councillor — the name of the councillor
(b) for a local government employee — the name of,
position held
(c) destination
(d) purpose
(e) cost
(f) any other relevant information about the overseas
travel the local government considers relevant

Section 189 Expenditure Summary of: 43
on grants to (a) expenditure on grants to community organisations
community (b) expenditure from each councillor's discretionary
organisations fund, including

i. the name of each community organisation which
an amount was allocated from the fund
ii. the amount and purpose of the allocation

Section 190 Other 1) The annual report must contain 38-46
contents (a) the Chief Executive Officer’s assessment of the progress
towards implemented its 5-year corporate plan and
annual operation plan
(b) particulars of other issues relevant to making an
informed assessment of the local government’s
operations and performance in the financial year

(c) an annual operations report for each commercial 47-63
business unit

(d) details of any action taken for, and expenditure on, a 65
service, facility or activity:
i. supplied by another local government under an
agreement for conducting a joint government
activity; and
ii. for which the local government levied special rates
or charges for the financial year




Index — statutory information continued

(e) the number of invitation to change tenders under 65
section228(7) during the financial year

(f) a list of the registers kept by the local government 65

(g) a summary of all concessions for rates and charges 66
granted by the local government

(h) a report on the internal audit for the financial year 37

(i) a statement about the local government’s activities 29

during the financial year to implement its plan for
equal opportunity in employment

(j) a summary of investigation notices given in the financial 64
year under section 49 for competitive neutrality
complaints

(k) the local government's responses in the financial year N/A
of the QCA's recommendations on any competitive
neutrality complaints under section 52(3)

2) In this section — annual operations report, for a N/A
commercial business unit, means a document that
contains the following information for the previous
financial year —

a) information that allows an informed assessment of
the unit’s operations, including a comparison with
the unit’s annual performance plan;

b) particulars of any changes made to the unit’s annual
performance plan for the previous financial year;

¢) particulars of the impact the changes had on the
unit’s -

i) financial position; and
ii) operating surplus or deficit; and
i) prospects;

d) particulars of any directions the local government
gave the unit.

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994
Section 23 Reporting 29-32

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Redland City Council

Report on the Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Redland City Council, which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Locsal
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
BIror.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the Auditior-General of Queensland Audiling Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selectsed depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control,
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.













INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Redland City Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

| have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a
special purpose financial report of Redland City Council for the year ended 30 June 2014,
comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief
Exacutive Officer.

The Council's Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainabilily Statement

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Reqgulation 2012,
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines Is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of
Queensland Audiling Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selecled depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the statement.

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately
calculated based on the Council's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor
on the Council's future sustainability.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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